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Chairman’s Statement 3 i # 3

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”),
I present the annual report of Winfoong
International Limited (the “Company”) and its

subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended

31 December 2012.
[

FINANCIAL RESULTS
For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group recorded

consolidated loss attributable to shareholders of approximately
HK$28.6 million.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid and the directors do not recommend

the payment of a final dividend.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS,
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND FUTURE
PROSPECTS

During the year, the Group continued to engage in property
related businesses and provision of horticultural services and has
introduced the securities trading business. The Group's turnover
of the year was mainly derived from horticultural services. No sale
of properties was transacted in the year.

The Group recorded loss for the year of approximately HK$28.6
million. The increase in net loss was mainly due to the decrease
in gross profit from property development segment, waiver of
commission payable in 2011 and impairment of available for sale

securities in 2012.

The change in segment revenues and results was mainly due to

the decrease in sale of properties.
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Chairman’s Statement 3 i $#t 3

The Company remains confident in the Hong Kong property
market, the prestigious location and the superior quality of the

Group's development properties.

The net asset value of the Company per share as at 31 December
2012 was approximately HK$0.13 (2011: HK$0.14) based on the
2,631,652,084 (2011: 2,631,652,084) shares issued.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had a total of 34 employees.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

All the Group's funding and treasury activities are centrally
managed and controlled at the corporate level. There is no
significant change in respect of treasury and financing policies from
the information disclosed in the Company's latest annual report.
The Group’s monetary assets and liabilities are denominated and
the Group conducts its business transactions principally in Hong
Kong dollars. The exchange rate risk of the Group is not considered
significant, no financial instruments for hedging purpose are

employed.

As at 31 December 2012, there was no outstanding bank loan
(2011: approximately HK$0.2 million). The Group's working capital
requirements are funded by bank deposits.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

| take this opportunity to express my gratitude to my colleagues
on the Board and the staff members of the Group for their strong

support and valuable contribution.

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 February 2013
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Corporate Governance Report 3% i %

Year ended 31 December 2012 # % - F— 4+ - H=—+—H IFE¥

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to raising the standard of corporate
governance within the Group in order to enhance the transparency
in disclosure of material information. The Group has complied
with the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the "“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the year
except the deviation stated in the following paragraphs.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions as set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Following specific
enquiry by the Company, all directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CoMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2012, the Board comprises four executive
directors and three independent non-executive directors, who
have appropriate corporate experience. The composition of the
Board during the year ended 31 December 2012 was as follows:

Executive directors

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick (Chairman and Managing Director)
Cheong Kim Pong

Cheong Sim Eng

Cheong Hooi Kheng

Independent non-executive directors
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert

Leung Wing Ning

Kwik Sam Aik
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Corporate Governance Report 3% i %

Year ended 31 December 2012 #%# - F— 4 - H =+—H IFF¥

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

ComPposITION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Details of the directors’ qualifications, directorships and other
particulars are set out on pages 27 to 28.

Among the members of the Board, Messrs. Cheong Kim Pong,
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick and Cheong Sim Eng and Ms. Cheong
Hooi Kheng are brothers and sister. Save as disclosed herein, to
the best knowledge of the Company, there is no other financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships among
the members of the Board.

FuncTions oF THE BoARD

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs
of the Company and the Group. Apart from its statutory duties,
the Board reviews and approves the Company’s and the Group's
strategic plans, key operational initiatives, major investments and
funding decisions, annual business plans, reviews the financial
performance of the Company and the Group and evaluates the
performance and compensation of senior management personnel.

Guidelines are established which specify certain material
transactions that require the Board’s approval which include
mergers and acquisitions, divestments and major capital
expenditure.

The Board has separate and independent access to management
and the company secretary. Management provides the Board with
reports of the Company’s and the Group's performance, financial
position and prospects, and these are reviewed by the Board at
Board meeting. Directors may obtain independent professional
advice in furtherance of their duties at the Company’s and the
Group's expense.

BoarRD MEETINGS

The Board holds meetings on a regular basis during the year to
review the Company’s and the Group's operations and financial
results. During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Board held
eleven meetings. Details of attendance of the directors at the
Board meetings are as follows:
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Boarp MEeTINGS (CONTINUED)

HPE ()
ATk (B

Attendance at Board meetings

EEggREEARY

Executive directors HiTEE
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick §E 2

(Chairman and Managing Director) (F/EFEFBICHE) 11/11
Cheong Kim Pong EE 5/11
Cheong Sim Eng fepatd 5/11
Cheong Hooi Kheng fEE 5/11
Independent non-executive directors BUHBTEF
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert FR LA 6/11
Leung Wing Ning oK 5 6/11
Kwik Sam Aik B=r4 5/11

GENERAL MEETING

'3 ¥

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company BE_ZT——F+T_A=1+—BLFE &
convened one general meeting. Details of attendance of the AEIBH—RRERE - EFHFERERE

directors at the general meeting are as follows:

Executive directors

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick
(Chairman and Managing Director)

Cheong Kim Pong

Cheong Sim Eng

Cheong Hooi Kheng

Independent non-executive directors
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert

Leung Wing Ning

Kwik Sam Aik

AR

Attendance at general meeting
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
there are three independent non-executive directors representing
at least one-third of the Board. Among the three independent non-
executive directors, one of them has appropriate professional
qualifications in accounting or relevant financial management
expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has entered into
an appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2015.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considered all of
them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the directors of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company had
arranged to provide to all directors with the “Guidelines for
Directors” and the “Guide for Independent Non-executive
Directors” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. The
directors had noted and studied the above mentioned documents.
Messrs. Chan Yee Hoi, Robert, Leung Wing Ning and Kwik Sam
Aik had also attended several forums and training seminars held
by professional organizations. The Company had received from
each of the directors of the Company the confirmations on taking
continuous professional training.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick
is both the chairman of the Board as well as the Group's chief
executive (“CE")/managing director. Given the size and that the
Company’s and the Group’s current business operations and
administration have been relatively stable and straightforward, the
Board is satisfied that one person is able to effectively discharge
the duties of both positions. However, going forward, the Board
will review from time to time the need to separate the roles of the
chairman and the CE if the situation warrants it.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Employees (including directors) are remunerated according
to their performance and working experience as well as
the prevailing market conditions. On top of basic salaries,
discretionary bonus and share options may by granted to eligible
employee by reference to the individual's performance. In
addition, the Group also provides social security benefits to its
staff such as mandatory provident fund scheme in Hong Kong.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company’s corporate governance functions are carried out
by the Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference
adopted by the Board in compliance with code provision D.3.1
of the CG Code, which include (a) to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendations to the Board; (b) to review and monitor
the training and continuous professional development of the
directors and senior management of the Company; (c) to review
and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review
and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and the directors of the Company; and
(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

For the year ended 31 December 2012 and as at the date of this
report, the Board had reviewed the corporate governance matters
of the Company. Saved for the deviation disclosed under the
“Chairman and Chief Executive”, the Company had complied with
the principles and applicable code provisions of the CG Code and
was not aware of any non-compliance to relevant applicable legal
and regulatory requirements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

AupIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference. The primary
responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment and removal
of external auditor, review the financial statements and material
advice in respect of financial reporting, and overseeing the
internal control procedures of the Company. At present, the Audit
Committee consists of three members, namely Messrs. Chan Yee
Hoi, Robert, Leung Wing Ning and Kwik Sam Aik, all of whom are
independent non-executive directors. Mr. Chan Yee Hoi, Robert
currently serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Audit Committee held
three meetings to make recommendation on the appointment of
external auditor, review financial statements, financial reporting
system and internal control procedures of the Company. Details of
attendance of each Audit Committee member at the meetings are
as follows:

Names of the Audit Committee members

EREZEEREHRA

Chan Yee Hoi, Robert FR LA
(Chairman of the Committee) (ZE2F/E)

Leung Wing Ning ZoKE

Kwik Sam Aik =%
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference.
The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are to review and make recommendations to the Board on the
overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all directors
and senior management of the Company. At present, the
Remuneration Committee consists of three members, comprising
two independent non-executive directors, Mr. Leung Wing Ning
and Mr. Chan Yee Hoi, Robert, and one executive director, Mr.
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick. Mr. Leung Wing Ning currently serves
as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting to review and make recommendation
on the remuneration policy and structure relating to all directors and
senior management of the Company. Details of attendance of each
Remuneration Committee member at the meeting are as follows:

Names of the Remuneration Committee members

FHESEREHRE

Leung Wing Ning oK ER
(Chairman of the Committee) (ZE8FF)

Chan Yee Hoi, Robert FRIA/S

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick $E X 2

The remuneration of directors is determined with reference
to their performance and working experience as well as the
prevailing market conditions. Details of emoluments of directors
for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in note 7 to the
financial statements. The emoluments paid to senior management
for the year ended 31 December 2012 falls within the following
bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000

£% 1,000,000 % 7T

1,000,001 7T = 2,000,00075 7T
2,000,001 77T & 3,000,000 74 7T
3,000,001 77T E 4,000,000 77T
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) with written terms of reference.
The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board on
a regular basis and to recommend to the Board the suitable
candidates for directors after consideration of the nominees’
independence and quality in order to ensure fairness and
transparency of all nominations. At present, the Nomination
Committee consists of three members, comprising two
independent non-executive directors, Mr. Kwik Sam Aik and Mr.
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert, and one executive director, Mr. Cheong Pin
Chuan, Patrick. Mr. Kwik Sam Aik currently serves as the chairman
of the Nomination Committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board. Details of attendance of each
Nomination Committee member at the meetings are as follows:

Names of the Nomination Committee members

REZSEHRENE

Kwik Sam Aik P=r
(Chairman of the Committee) (ZESLFE

Chan Yee Hoi, Robert BRIAE

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick $EH 82

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2012, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group at the date and of the Group's results
and cash flows for the year then ended and are properly prepared
on the going concern basis in accordance with the statutory
requirements and accounting standards. The directors are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company is set
out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on page 31.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the auditor of the
Company and its subsidiaries would receive approximately
HK$420,000 (2011: HK$420,000) for audit and audit related
services, HKS$nil (2011: HK$nil) for tax services and HK$60,000
(2011: HK$60,000) for other services.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Company’s system of
internal control.

To facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations and
to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations, the
Group emphasises on the importance of a sound internal control
system which is also indispensable for mitigating the Group's risk
exposure. The Group’s system of internal control is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of failure
in operational systems and fulfillment of the business objectives.

The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by
the Board in order to make it practical and effective in providing
reasonable assurance in relation to protection of material assets
and identification of business risks. The Board is satisfied that,
based on information furnished to it and on its own observations,
the present internal controls of the Group are satisfactory.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business activities and
has implemented a practical and effective control system which
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority,
a sound cash management system and periodic review of the
Group's performance by the Audit Committee and the Board.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control and is of the view that the system
of internal control adopted for the year ended 31 December
2012 is sound and is effective to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Cheng Kin Nam, Julia (“Ms. Cheng") was appointed as the
company secretary of the Company. According to Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules, Ms. Cheng took no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training for the year ended 31 December 2012.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

CONVENING A SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Company’s bye-laws, any one or
more members of the Company holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the secretary of the Company, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

PUTTING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by addressing them to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at Room 3201, 9 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong by post for the attention of the company secretary of
the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING
Shareholder(s), at his/their own expense, holding (i) not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders having
at the date of requisition the right to vote at general meeting;
or (ii) not less than 100 shareholders, can submit a written
request stating the resolution intended to be moved at the next
annual general meeting. The requisition signed by the relevant
shareholder(s) must be deposited at the registered office at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda
and at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong at Room 3201, 9 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong for
the attention to the company secretary of the Company not less
than six weeks before the annual general meeting in the case
of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less than
seven days before the annual general meeting in the case of any
other requisition. The request will be verified with the branch
share registrar of the Company and upon their confirmation that
the request is proper and in order, the company secretary of the
Company will ask the Board to include the resolution in the notice
for such general meeting.

As mentioned in the above section headed “Convening a Special
General Meeting”, shareholder(s) can make a requisition to
convene a special general meeting and move forward a resolution
thereat. The requisition signed by the relevant shareholder(s)
must be deposited at the registered office at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 3201,
9 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the
company secretary of the Company no later than seven days prior
to the date of special general meeting. Only when the request has
been verified with the branch share registrar to be proper and in
order, the company secretary of the Company will ask the Board
to include the resolution in the notice for such general meeting.
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ADOPTION OF NEW CONSTITUTIONAL PR A0 AL 4 5 P S
DOCUMENT

In order to bring the bye-laws of the Company in line with the RLTEARAMAFTE LB RERER
latest amendments made to the Listing Rules and the Companies AE—NN— 2B THRBETRAAE T
Act 1981 of Bermuda and to incorporate certain housekeeping MIEs] - EEGRBRLFINAER - &R
amendments, the Board resolved to put forward a special A AERARBIREE ZME] - AAF
resolution to adopt the new bye-laws in substitution of the existing MAZEETFBTHERARARBHRAEZT
bye-laws of the Company. Details of the amendments to the ——HENA=ZTREZBEHER T —FFH
bye-laws of the Company are set out in the Company's circular A e EARTRZE—ZFNALAETZ

dated 30 April 2012 and the annual report 2011. The new [REAFARG LBAEERER  WHEIEE
bye-laws were duly adopted with effect upon the passing of EAFAIN AR - MBERABZFAEIERAR
the relevant resolution at the annual general meeting of the A)#815E www.winfoong.com » LAEIE
Company held on 7 June 2012 and are currently available on

the Stock Exchange's website and the Company's website at

www.winfoong.com.
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The directors herein present their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company consists of investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of the principal

subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results and cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012 and the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages
34 to 123.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid and the directors do not recommend

the payment of a final dividend.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority
interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out

below.
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RESULTS ES
Year ended 31 December
BE+-B=t-HLEE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
“E--f —T—% —T-TF ZTTHNE ZTIN\E
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR THT THL THL THL
Turnover e 4,629 46,721 376,498 35,667 48533
(Loss)/profit before taxation BFiAn (B518) /& F (28,611)  (22,825) (19,496) 85,814 34,290
Income tax (expense)/credit FisH () /% - - - (144) 5,505
(Loss)/profit for the year EE(ER)/&F (28,611)  (22,825) (19,496) 85,670 39,795
Attributable to: il
Equity shareholders of KARERFEA
the Company (28,611) (22,825) (19,496) 85,670 39,795
Non-controlling interests Pl - _ _ _ _
(28,611) (22,825) (19,496) 85,670 39,795
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS B~ A R Ik BnE AR
As at 31 December
B+=ZR=1+—-H
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
ZE-Zf —T—% ZZ-TF ZZTNF ZZIN\F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR FHT FHL THT THET
Total assets BEE 360,137 397,048 753,688 717,697 460,849
Total liabilities BaR (20,724) (25,394)  (361,409)  (297,636)  (141,065)
339,413 371,654 392,279 420,061 319,784
Equity attributable to equity ARTEREEA
shareholders of the Company Bl R 339,413 371,654 392,279 420,061 319,784
Non-controlling interests JERR R LS - _ _ _ _
339,413 371,654 392,279 420,061 319,784
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FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group are set out
in note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year, together with the reasons therefor, are set out in note 23 to

the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing

shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2012, the Company’'s reserves available for
distribution calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) amounted to
approximately HK$124,608,000 (2011: HK$129,013,000).

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
approximately HK$101,000 (2011: HK$105,000).

Dl i ¢
AEHETEELE
113 °

FHIE NI IR

JBe A
FRAARBRA 2 &
BRI RRMFL23 -

HEEREY A

i S D B i

T F AR E S AN R A D T
R )R R B S L AR 2 B
AR I o

o i
FRARRRAEEZ HERDFERNH
BHRENE 23 REARELDE -

W 43 kil
R-Z——#+-A=+—0 BEER:E
—AN—FREEGEER]) sTEZ A REZ
A IREEL A 124,608,000 (=%
——4%F : 129,013,000 7T) °

B
FRNAREBEEZRKAT101,000/8 T
(ZZ——% :105,000/87T) °

Annual Report 2012 —F— "4E4ER

19



20

Directors’ Report 3 3 € 3t 1

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for 43% (2011: 92%) of the total sales
for the year and sales to the largest customer included therein
amounted to 23% (2011: 26%).

Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted
for 53% (2011: 55%) of the total purchases for the year and
purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
22% (2011: 19%).

As far as the directors are aware, neither the directors, their
associates, nor those shareholders which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital had

any interest in the five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of

this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick (Chairman and Managing Director)
Cheong Kim Pong

Cheong Sim Eng

Cheong Hooi Kheng

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert

Leung Wing Ning

Kwik Sam Aik

In accordance with bye law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws,
Messrs. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick and Cheong Sim Eng and Ms.
Cheong Hooi Kheng will retire. Messrs. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick
and Cheong Sim Eng and Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election as executive directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

At 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of
directors and chief executive in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company as required to be disclosed under
and within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures

Ordinance (the “SFO") were as follows:—

R Z R R
EHREGRITZRRAFARERET
B MBAR T LN AMFARR—F
PO 7 S B 1 OREBRME IR 5D T 4% 1E 2 R
Baw-

Wz pEd
R-Z——F+-A=+—0 EERIE
TRABRARF 2 - ARG RES
o AR EE SRR (B AR R
CUNERUR- 23331 S 151 -
HRABWT ¢ —

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES TAAR A B BBy B MR ey 2 37 4+ —
OF THE COMPANY:—

Nature of Number of
Name of directors interest ordinary shares held Percentage
EENA EEME g AREE Batk
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick B Interest of spouse 3,736,700 0.14%

B (Note)

(B¥3E)

Cheong Hooi Kheng S Beneficial owner 2,200,000 0.08%

Ea#AA

Note:

Madam Helen Zee Yee Ling, the spouse of Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick, was
interested in 3,736,700 shares, and as a result, Mr. Cheong is deemed to be
interested in these shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the
directors and the chief executive of the Company were, under
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, taken to be interested
or deemed to have any other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company, that
were required to be entered into the register kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on
15 April 2002 for the purposes of enabling the Group to provide
incentives or rewards to eligible participants for their contribution
to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of the Group
and to enable the Group to recruit and/or to retain high-calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the
Group.

The directors of the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to
invite eligible participants, including the directors or any employee
(whether full time or part-time) of the Group or an affiliate, and any
consultant, agent, or advisor of the Group or an affiliate, to take up

options to subscribe for shares of the Company.

There is no share available for issue under the share option
scheme as at the date of this report. The maximum number of
shares in respect of which share options may be granted to any
one participant in any twelve-month period shall not exceed 1% of

the total number of shares in issue from time to time.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
share option scheme at any time during a period as determined
by the directors of the Company and not exceeding ten years
from the date of the grant. There is no minimum period for which
an option must be held before it can be exercised. The offer of a
grant of share options may be accepted within twenty-one days
from the date of offer upon an initial payment of HK$1 in total for
each acceptance. The exercise price of the options is determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion and shall not be less than
whichever is the highest of:

(a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheets on the date of the grant,
which must be a business day;

22 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

(b)  the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading days

immediately preceding the date of the grant; and
(c)  the nominal value of a share.

During the year, there is no options outstanding, granted,
exercised, cancelled and lapsed.

The share option scheme expired on 15 April 2012. The Company
is considering the adoption of a new share option scheme and a
circular in this relation will be published as and when appropriate.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from as disclosed under the sections headed “Directors’
interests” and “Share option scheme” above, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Company’s directors, their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the

Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements, there
were no contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest subsisted at the end of year or at any time
during the year.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in this report, no contract of significance has
been entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries
and the controlling shareholders of the Company or any of
their subsidiaries, at any time during the year. No contract of
significance for the provision of services to the Company or any of
its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholders of the Company or
any of their subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING AR BT BB A

BUSINESS

At 31 December 2012, interests of directors in competing RZIE——F+=-A=+—H EFRERX
SEBERBRF2EBTRESZEOT

business of the Group were as follows:

Name of Nature of
Name of directors company competing business Nature of interest
Y NERER BEEBME BitE
Cheong Kim Pong Hong Fok Property development and As a director and shareholder
EeE Corporation construction, property

Limited (“"HFC")  management, investment trading

BREXERLA MEERIEE WMEEE REEE REERER

(BEEED

Hong Fok Land Property management, trading As a director
International of securities
Limited (“HFL")

Hong Fok Land ~ ¥IXEIE - BHEE RES
International

Limited ([HFLJ)

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick HFC Property development and As a director and shareholder
B construction, property
management, investment trading
BRREXE MEBRRKEE  MEER REEE REENKRR
HFL Property management, trading As a director and the
of securities spouse of a shareholder
HFL WEER  EHEE REZRRRZ BB
Cheong Sim Eng HFC Property development and As a director and shareholder
BRE construction, property
management, investment trading
BRREXE MEBRRKEE MEER REEE REENKRR
HFL Property management, trading As a director and shareholder
of securities
HFL WEER  EHEE REZRRR
Cheong Hooi Kheng HFC Property development and As a director and shareholder
EEH construction, property
management, investment trading
BRREX MEBRRKEE  MEER REEE REENKRR
HFL Property management, trading As a shareholder
of securities
HFL MEER  EHEE RIRR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS

At 31

December 2012, the following persons (not being directors

or chief executive of the Company) had an interest in the following

long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336

F BB B I - Z A2

RZE——F+=-_A=+—8" ' TH AL
(RRAREFHEETHABRIN ZBAR
RIR B E 5 KB G (5015 336 & 2 R EFT1F
B2 B MAT e 8 AR A Rz AR 19 sk A8 B AR

of the SFO. iR h AR -
Capacity Number of shares held Percentage
Name of shareholder BREE #E FrsRAEA Batt
HFC BEEE Held by controlled corporation 1,652,910,365 62.81%
BRX B EERE (Note 1)
(FitsE1)
First Strategy Investments Limited First Strategy Investments Limited Beneficial owner 628,746,775 23.89%
ERAEA
HFL HFL Held by controlled corporation 628,746,775 23.89%
BB ERRE (Note 2)
(3t 2)
Barragan Trading Corp. Barragan Trading Corp. Beneficial owner 285,312,566 10.84%
ERAEA
Praise Time Co Limited Praise Time Co Limited Beneficial owner 136,000,000 5.17%
ERAEA

Notes:

Save

HFC was deemed to have the same beneficial interests as its wholly owned
subsidiaries, Hong Fok Corporation Limited (“HFC Cayman”) and Hong Fok
Corporation (H.K.) Limited (“HFCHK"), did in the issued share capital of
the Company by virtue of HFC's interest in HFC Cayman and HFCHK. HFC
Cayman and HFCHK were directly interested in 976,720,587 and 47,443,003
shares of the Company respectively. HFC beneficially owned 36.98% of the
issued share capital of HFL and was deemed to have the same beneficial
interests as HFL did in 628,746,775 shares of the Company.

HFL was deemed to have the same beneficial interests as its wholly owned
subsidiary, Hong Fok Land Asia Limited (“HFLA"), did in the issued share
capital of the Company by virtue of HFL's interests in HFLA. HFLA was
deemed to have the same beneficial interests as its wholly owned subsidiary,
First Strategy Investments Limited, did in the issued share capital of the
Company by virtue of HFLA's interest in First Strategy Investments Limited.

as disclosed above, no other person was recorded in the

register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as

having an interest or short position in the shares and underlying

shares of the Company as at 31 December 2012.

MEE

(1) AL @ E %2 MHong Fok Corporation
Limited ([HFC Cayman]) B E % (&)
BRAR(DEEEERE] EaEER - Fith
BAEE2ENEAGTHFC Cayman MEREE
E¥BZBRARARIDBITRAFRES 2 BRER
#[R e HFC Cayman &SR EXEED R E#E
WA N2 71 976,720,587 A 19 K 47,443,003
MRA&(D 2 2 o R EEESEBHFLE 3T
A4 36.98% 2w WA BEHFLAARA A
628,746,775 I ER Em s o

(2) AR HFL®Hong Fok Land Asia Limited
(HFLAD BEA#EZ - FULERAEE 2 EK
BRARIHFLARARRICHITRAMEEZE
BiEXMER - AR HFLAKRBEZ2EHB R
&) First Strategy Investments Limited Z 4%
@ MHFLARAKRARIBBITRAMES 2 E
BRI AR BB First Strategy Investments
Limited PR EER -

BEXHBEBREN RZE——F+=8
=+—B BREARBREEFKPE KR
EIWRZREMFE 2 ELMATREE - B
|BEAM A TRARR A 2 R 5 RABRE AR 5 5 8
BHRTAR -
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions between the Group and parties regarded
as "Related Parties” under applicable accounting principles are
set out in note 27 to the financial statements. No transaction
disclosed thereto constitutes connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction of the Company subject to, among other
things, reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’

approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There was no significant event subsequent to 31 December 2012.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed amount of public float during the year
and up to the date of this report as required under the Listing
Rules.

AUDITOR
On 7 June 2012, CCIF CPA Limited retired as auditor of the

Company and its subsidiaries, and Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA
Limited was appointed to fill the casual vacancy by the retirement
of CCIF CPA Limited, to hold office until the conclusion of the next
annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 February 2013
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DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick, aged 63, is the chairman and
managing director of the Company. Mr. Cheong is a member of
the Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He joined the
Group in 1991 and was appointed a director in 1996 and a member
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee in
2012. He has over 40 years' experience in property development.
He is a director of the Company’s substantial shareholder,
HFC, the shares of which are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited (“SGX"), and is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Cheong Kim Pong, aged 70, is an executive director of
the Company. Mr. Cheong joined the Group in 1991 and was
appointed a director in 1996. He attended Civil Engineering at The
Technical College in Australia. He has over 49 years’ experience
in construction management and real estate development. He is a
director of the Company’s substantial shareholder, HFC, and is a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Cheong Sim Eng, aged 52, is an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Cheong graduated from the Chaminade University
of Honolulu with a Bachelor of Arts degree. He joined the Group
in 1991 and was appointed a director in 1996. He has over 27
years' experience in the construction industry. He is a director of
the Company’s substantial shareholder, HFC, and is a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng, aged 60, is an executive director of the
Company. Ms. Cheong is holder of a Bachelor of Science degree
in Business Administration from the California State University,
Hayward and a Master of Business Administration degree from
the Chaminade University of Honolulu. She joined the Group
in 1991 and is presently senior manageress of the property
development division of the Group. She was appointed a non-
executive director of the Company, alternate to Madam Lim Ghee,
in 2005 and an executive director of the Company in 2011. She
has over 31 years' experience in the construction industry. She is
a director of HFC, a substantial shareholder of the Company, and
KTL Global Limited, the shares of which are listed on the SGX.

Messrs. Cheong Kim Pong, Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick and
Cheong Sim Eng and Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng are brothers and
sister.

W
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REFRRLE - ERETVEMNSHAAE
REBEMAGZEER - BRR—NANA—F
MBAREE IR —NARFEZERER
RAEERN T —_FRZIAFTHZES
RIREZREGKE - REVERRITEAR
BOTFER - BRARARZZERRBRE
BEHEBRORANKELSZZHER AR
(TFMRR B EW) 2&EF - WHEER
REETHEBARZES -

BeEEt REL+m ARRANTE
E-WR—AA—FMEAEE ¥R
“NANAREFEZERRRAEE - REVE
MEMAREBRETREE - RERET
EEENMEERRTEAEBBN +NLFR
B WARRAZIERRBREXZLE
£ UREFARTDETHERRZES -

BHLEE BER+ 5 KRBT
EFE - BALEEENES LChaminade
Universityr FFB X 22+ B 7 R
—NAN—FNEAEE YR —NNAFEZ
FARRRES - FEBEEFBB-TLF
LR WARRRIZEERRBREEEZSE
B WEFAARETHBARIZES -

EERLZLT  BEASTR ARAATHITE
FoELTEFAHayward MMz AET
HERBESET2MAKLEEILChaminade
University T B BB T & R
—AN—FEMBAEE - RIRAERNEEYE
BRIAMNSHEE - BR_ZZNFESR
FRARTBZEATESE MBEL T 2BHE
ES)ER T ——FEZARARTZH
TEE FEEEEXERABBE=T—FL&H -
BRAAFIEFERRBEEERKTLGIobal
Limited (MR &2 RMH DRI IR SR
M) zESE -

BT RILK -

Annual Report 2012 —F— "4E4ER

27



28

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies # 3¢ § 5 S 5 #LA B J§i )i

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Chan Yee Hoi, Robert, aged 63, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company. Mr. Chan joined the Group
and was appointed an independent non-executive director and
a member of the Audit Committee in 2004 and became as the
chairman of the Audit Committee in 2011. He was, in March 2012,
appointed as the chairman and, in July 2012, re-designated as a
member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. He graduated from the University of Hong Kong
with a Bachelor of Social Science degree. He has over 33 years’
experience in corporate restructuring, corporate finance, capital
markets, direct investment and asset management. He held
senior positions in various American banks in Hong Kong and fund
management companies.

Mr. Leung Wing Ning, aged 65, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Leung joined the Group and
was appointed an independent non-executive director and a
member of the Audit Committee in 2009. He was appointed as
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee in July 2012. He
was educated at Stanford University, California and New York
University, New York where he obtained a Bachelor degree of
Science (Mechanical Engineering) and a Master of Business
Administration degree respectively. He has over 30 years’
experience in senior management positions in international trades
and in banking and finance. He retired from Hang Seng Bank
Limited in 2007. He is an independent non-executive director of
Wing On International Limited, the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Kwik Sam Aik, aged 61, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Kwik joined the Group and
was appointed an independent non-executive director and a
member of the Audit Committee in 2011. He was appointed as
the chairman of the Nomination Committee in July 2012. He
graduated from the University of Singapore with a Bachelor of
Accountancy degree. He has held various senior positions with
international banks in Hong Kong, Singapore and China. He has
over 26 years of experience in banking, covering different areas
including commercial and international banking, corporate and
investment banking and capital markets.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Cheong Tze Hong, Marc, aged 40, is the director of the

business development division of the Group. Mr. Cheong holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from the University of
Southern California in the United States of America and a Master
of Business Administration degree from the University of Chicago
Graduate School of Business. He joined the Group in 2000 and
has over 3 years' experience in the merchant banking field and 12

years' experience in business development.

Mr. Cheong Tze Hian, Howard, aged 38, is the director of the
project management division of the Group. Mr. Cheong holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from the University of
Southern California in the United States of America. He joined
the Group in 2004 and has over 3 years’ experience in the private

equity field and 8 years' experience in project management.

Messrs. Cheong Tze Hong, Marc and Cheong Tze Hian, Howard

are the sons of Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick.

Ms. Cheong Puay Kheng, aged 58, is the senior manageress of
the property management division of the Group. Ms. Cheong
graduated from Armstrong College of Berkeley in the United
States of America with a Bachelor of Science degree. She
joined the Group in 1993 and has over 34 years' experience in
the planning, organising and control of office administration and
personnel management. Ms. Cheong Puay Kheng is the sister of
Messrs. Cheong Kim Pong, Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick, Cheong
Sim Eng and Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng.

Mr. Cheong Aik Yen, Roy, aged 47, is the senior manager of
business promotion of the Group. Mr. Cheong graduated from the
Western New England College in Massachusetts with a Bachelor
of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering. He joined the Group
in 2002 and has 2 years’ experience in the merchant banking field.

Mr. Cheong is the son of Mr. Cheong Kim Pong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Mr. Ho Chi Leung, Tony, aged 54, is the project manager of

the property development division of the Group. Mr. Ho holds
a Bachelor degree of Building Surveying from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and Bachelor degree of General Studies
from The Open University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group in
2011 and has over 31 years' experience in construction and project
management of large scale construction projects in Hong Kong,
Mainland China, Macau, Canada and USA.
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Crowe Horwath.,

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF WINFOONG INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Winfoong
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 34 to 123, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

BEE%E (F8) SMEBRERAR
Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited

Member Crowe Horwath International

8 M 1SWEET7IE 1BET L2
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2012 and of the Group's loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 February 2013

Yau Hok Hung
Practising Certificate Number P04911
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Consolidated Income Statement 35525 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

34

2012 2011
—F--F %
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
M3 THET FEL
Turnover = 3 3 4,629 46,721
Cost of sales SHEMA (900) (31,379)
Gross profit E 3,729 15,342
Net gain on trading securities RHESH TR 47 -
Other revenue Hio iz 4 3,676 827
Other net (loss)/income Hib (5B) WA T8 4 (375) 5,148
Operating and administrative expenses ERITBEY (35,685) (44,126)
Loss from operations REFE (28,608) (22,809)
Finance costs BAKA 5(a) (3) (16)
Loss before taxation BB AR 5 (28,611) (22,825)
Income tax expense PSS 6(a) - -
Loss for the year rEERE (28,611) (22,825)
Attributable to: DT B
Equity shareholders of the Company ADAEREFEA 9 (28,611) (22,825)
Non-controlling interests JEER R - -
Loss for the year FREE (28,611) (22,825)
Loss per share ShEE 10
Basic =R HK cents (1.09)&fl  HK cents (0.87) 1l
Diluted e HK cents (1.09) &l HK cents (0.87) L
The notes on pages 40 to 123 form part of these financial FA0E 123 B Z MBS BHRE Y —
statements. o o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #5421 ¥ 22 %

For the year ended 31 December 2012

B = S I

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2012 2011
—B-=F —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEIT FHET
Loss for the year FAEE  (28611)  (22,825)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income  FREMEE (EE)
for the year (after tax and (BB REF D EAER)
reclassification adjustments)
Available-for-sale securities: net AHHEES
movement in the fair value N ERE 2 ZEFE
reserve (net of nil tax): MIHIE 2 $58
— Changes in fair value —FRNEERZ
recognised during the year NEEEZ (5,430) 1,900
- Reclassification adjustments —PEEEBRR L
for amounts transferred SR ENDERAE
to profit or loss — impairment —REEE (ME4)
losses (note 4) 1,800 300
(3,630) 2,200
Total comprehensive loss FAZHERAE
for the year (32,241) (20,625)
Attributable to: DA B -
Equity shareholders of the RABIE=FEAA
Company (32,241) (20,625)
Non-controlling interests FEFERR M A - -
Total comprehensive loss FAZTHBERTE
for the year (32,241) (20,625)

The notes on pages 40 to 123 form part of these financial

statements.

bl
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position & M BN ML

As at 31 December 2012 i & — _4Ff - H=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
2012 2011
—E—F 2%
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT i TEx FAT FHT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Fixed assets BE&E 13 1,383 1,702
Other financial assets Hih o gt &= 15 1,370 6,950
2,753 8,652
Current assets REEE
Trading securities RPBH 16 523 -
Inventories T8 17 251,134 249,857
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E fth EUKRIE 18 18,699 17,334
Cash and cash equivalents ~ BR&NIREHEY 19(a) 87,028 121,205
357,384 388,396
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMENERIE 20 20,724 25,213
Bank borrowings, unsecured  $R{THEER (I IR) 21 = 181
20,724 25,394
Net current assets REBEEFE 336,660 363,002
NET ASSETS EEFE 339413 371,654
Capital and reserves IR ikt
Share capital BrA 23(b) 131,582 131,582
Reserves & 207,831 240,072
Total equity attributable to A FRZFEA
equity shareholders FEILRER AR
of the Company 339,413 371,654
Non-controlling interests  FFIERER = -
TOTAL EQUITY HRER 339,413 371,654

HREMBEEF123B 2 RAMERERTY A
gEreRN - E—=-E-_A -1+ )\BHERE
BT WAHTHEEREEE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 34 to 123 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28
February 2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick Cheong Kim Pong

Director Director
- EES

FA0E 123 B 2RI EBHRE 2 —
statements. H

The notes on pages 40 to 123 form part of these financial

=

e
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Statement of Financial Position B #5IR L F&

As at 31 December 2012 3 ~FE— 4 - H=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2012 2011

—E-CF —E——F
Note HK$'000  HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B&E BT FBx FET FET

Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RIBRRZIRE 14 1 1
Other financial assets Hit o RERE 15 1,370 6,800
1,371 6,801
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables BHREMEKIRE 18 260,475 262,978
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 19(a) 4 5
260,479 262,983
Current liabilities RERE
Trade and other payables B REMEMNEKE 20 754 653
Net current assets MEBEEFRE 259,725 262,330
NET ASSETS BEFE 261,096 269,131
Capital and reserves PR ik
Share capital ey 23(b) 131,582 131,682
Reserves G 129,514 137,549
TOTAL EQUITY BER 261,096 269,131
The consolidated financial statements on pages 34 to 123 were HNEMEEF 1238 2R AUBHRETIA
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 EEgR T —=F-AZ+NBIERK
February 2013 and are signed on its behalf by: T - WHTIIEEREREE
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick Cheong Kim Pong
E 2 EERE
Director Director
EF BE

40E 123 B2 MR EMHHREZ —

B o

i

The notes on pages 40 to 123 form part of these financial

pul g

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 55 & sz B #

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARARERE ARILER

Capital
redemp- Fair Non-
Share Share tion value  Retained controlling Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve profits Total interests equity
kA FER

BA RieE BERE OVERE RERA # iR
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
TAT TEL  TEL  TER  TER TR TAT  TEn

At 1 January 2011 WZE-—%-3-A 131,582 4785 121 1430 254361 392,279 - 39079
Changes in equity for2011:  —E--EEREF:
Loss for the year EREE - - - - (280 (28%) - (285
Other comprehensive EREMZENS
income for the year - - - 2,200 - 2,200 - 2,200
Total comprehensive ERZE
{loss}fincome for the year (BR)/ i - - - 2200 (228%)  [20625) - [2062)
At 31 December 2011 RZB—F+ZA=1-H 131,582 478 121 3630 23153 371654 - 371654
At 1 January 2012 R-2--£-f-R 131,582 4,785 121 3630 231536 371,654 - 371,65
Changesin equity for 2012 —E-ZFEREF:
Loss for the year ERER - - - - (28611)  (286M) - (28611)
Other comprehensive EREMER
loss for the year BE - - - (3630) - (3630) - (3630)
Total comprehensive ERzE
loss for the year BReE - - - (3630) (28611 (32.241) - ()
At 31 December 2012 RZB3-ZE+ZA=1-H 131582 4,785 121 - 200925 339413 - 339413
The notes on pages 40 to 123 from part of the financial FAOE 123 B Z MBI S HRE 2 —
statements. B o

Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows £S5 B iR B3R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

o F— A = — HIF

2012 2011
—2—-F —T—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FAET
Operating activities L
Cash used in operations KEFRAZIRE (34,306) (313,194)
Tax paid =ENE
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEBFEH - -
Net cash used in operating activities && % FEHARSFEE (34,306)  (313,194)
Investing activities REEE
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BABTEEE IR (171) (64)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets & BlE & EMMERIE 4 -
Interest received BHFIE 480 753
Net cash generated from RETBEE
investing activities ZIREFEE 313 689
Financing activities REEE
Decrease in amount due to JERAREEERE
the Company's substantial FRIE 2R
shareholder - (6,273)
Repayment of bank loans EBIRITER (181) (260)
Interest paid BRFE (3) (16)
Net cash used in REEEEACRE
financing activities | (184)  (6,549)
Net decrease in cash and RekBEEEY2
cash equivalents WA R (34,177) (319,054)
Cash and cash equivalents at the RENZRERRE
beginning of the year ZEY 121,205 440,259
Cash and cash equivalents attheend REXRZHERRE
of the year ZEY 87,028 121,205

The notes on pages 40 to 123 form part of these financial

statements.

40 E123 B ZMIFEBAR L S E®MR 2 —
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. A summary of the significant accounting

policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Company. Note 1(c) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting years reflected in these financial

statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2012 comprise the Company and

its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional

currency of the Company.

40 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets are stated at their fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment property (see note 1(f));

- buildings (see note 1(g)); and

- financial instruments classified as available-for-
sale securities or as trading securities (see note
1(e)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results

may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

BE = AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. BEEEHEOR (8)

b)

S e A A (4

BV BRI E R 25T B8 &%
RELRAE » HEBIIA T &5t
HUERFIRREE - TOEETIRKRE
ZAFEI

- REWEEMEIR)

- BFRME1) &

- SDEAVHIBEEFLFAXR
SEHZEBITE (R
1(e)) °

B ENTEBBYBHREEL
ZHBHRRFEEREHELA
B - fhEt MR - Tz HE -
R RBREFEEREE &
B WARFX ZBORER KA
WEE - RFEARBRER
REBELRRERERENZ
FERTIEAEZEEAMEA
EREEMEL - EERBK
EIEE R B ATARRE I HE M AUR A
BRIREENEERABEEL
iz £E - BREHBEFHEHS
ISR A

AEBEFEAEGE RBER
RAIEHFHE - A AR 2 &
RIEREFLARET ZHRA -
AR Z B FER A BERT ¢ s
EERCRPACHEZ 33 IS
HAR - RIS B ROR SRR AR
BRAERT
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)
Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

) Changes in accounting policies
The HKICPA has issued several amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of
these, the following developments are relevant to the
Group’s financial statements:

° Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:

Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets

° Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes —

Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets

The Group has not applied any new standards or
interpretations that are not yet effective for the current

accounting period.
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1.

EEEEralBOR (8

b)

c)

Yo e A A o (38

ERERAEMBERREEATE
BEMBREENSEREFH
Z AV R AFEE M 2 E B EE K
IRTEMIRE 2 Fmal <

S8 gt eyt WoR
BEGIHMAS D RMBIREDE
B mEEANNER » ARAE
B RARRRITE R B & RR
e Hep o UTEESHEANAE
B

o  HEBUBREEIET7R
[Z@TA X KE-BED
BEE | ERT

o HWEBEENZE125%
[P g% —EZEHIE -
1ERTE ZE | MIER]

REBE W BN IRITE R HFE R A
Efa 1 R AR #T A S HE o



Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

<)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:

Disclosures

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require certain
disclosures to be included in the financial statements
in respect of transferred financial assets that are not
derecognised in their entirety and for any continuing
involvement in transferred financial assets that are
derecognised in their entirety, irrespective of when
the related transfer transaction occurred. However,
an entity need not provide the disclosures for the
comparative period in the first year of adoption. The
Group did not have any significant transfers of financial
assets in previous periods or the current period which
require disclosure in the current accounting period

under the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes

Under HKAS 12 deferred tax is required to be
measured with reference to the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the
entity expects to recover the carrying amount of the
asset(s) in question. In this regard, the amendments
to HKAS 12 introduced a rebuttable presumption that
the carrying amount of investment property carried at
fair value under HKAS 40, Investment property, will be
recovered through sale. This presumption is rebutted
on a property-by-property basis if the investment
property in question is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time, rather than through
sale. These amendments do not have a material
impact on the Group’s financial statements because

the Group has no significant investment properties.

BE = AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. BEEEHEOR (8)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are

exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net identifiable assets.

44 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)
Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated income statement and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
(see note 1(e)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or jointly

controlled entity .

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 1(i)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in

a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

BE = AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEEEHEOR (8)

(CONTINUED)

e)  Other investments in debt and equity securities e) M BB A IR N 2 A B
The Group’'s and the Company's policies for REE RARRIRES KRR F
investments in debt and equity securities, other than HREZBER (TRERME A
investments in subsidiaries, are as follows: AlZRE)WMT
Investments in debt and equity securities are initially REBRRARFZS A 2R E R
stated at fair value, which is their transaction price BATEYE  ZKEARIXHE
unless fair value can be more reliably estimated % BRIEFEAGEE(HEE
using valuation techniques whose variables include EBREENEERZMBENEZ
only data from observable markets. Cost includes HIR) A SEM A E E QA E - K
attributable transaction costs, except where REFEREXGEA - HETXS
indicated otherwise below. These investments are EHRBPERIN - BEEZFRER
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on FE S EE T

their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified FHERZX 5 2 BHIREWRIIERE
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs BEE -MARBHRIKNAEE
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end ERTERRAER - A FER
of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, BEMERETEMS  TELEZE
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in EENIERRAER - LBz
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit FAERKFER T BIENZIE
or loss does not include any dividends or interest BEGHEMBRESLFE - BZ
earned on these investments as these are recognised ZUABEREMFE1()(v) & (v) 7]
in accordance with the policies set out in note 1(r)(iv) B BUERTER -

and (v).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the REB K AR BB AR
Company have the positive ability and intention to hold DMBREFEBEZIE 2 HAE
to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity securities. BEE pERIHAEIHE
Held-to-maturity securities are stated at amortised Hlo FEZNHAESAEIENK
cost less impairment losses (see note 1(i)). AR AR B B R R B BR (R EE

1) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

e)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)

Investments in securities which do not fall into any
of the above categories are classified as available-for-
sale securities. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
fair value reserve, except foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from changes in the amortised cost
of monetary items such as debt securities which are
recognised directly in profit or loss. Dividend income
from these investments is recognised in profit or loss
in accordance with the policy set out in note 1(r)(iv)
and, where these investments are interest-bearing,
interest calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the
policy set out in note 1(r){v). When these investments
are derecognised or impaired (see note 1(i)), the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments

or they expire.

BE = AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. BEEEHEOR (8)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

f)

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
note 1(h)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value,
unless they are still in the course of construction
or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably determined
at that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change
in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties is

accounted for as described in note 1(r)(vi).

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted
for as an investment property on a property-by-
property basis. Any such property interest which has
been classified as an investment property is accounted
for as if it were held under a finance lease (see note
1(h)), and the same accounting policies are applied
to that interest as are applied to other investment
properties leased under finance leases. Lease
payments are accounted for as described in note 1(h).
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1.

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2)

Other property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of
the leasehold land at the inception of the lease (see
note 1(h)) are stated at their revalued amount, being
their fair value at the date of the revaluation less any

subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets
does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the end of reporting

period.

The other items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses (see note 1(i)).

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties
held for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in property revaluation reserve.
The only exceptions are as follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in
respect of that same asset immediately prior to

the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or
loss.

1.

BE = AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE F— A=A HIFEE

(LU TTtHE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

]

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing

costs (see note 1(t)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred
from the property revaluation reserve to retained

profits and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives

as follows:

- Leasehold land classified as held under finance

leases is depreciated over the term of lease.

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives of

40 years.

- Furniture, equipment and other fixed assets are

depreciated over 5 years.
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1.

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IFF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEHEOR (8

(CONTINUED)

g)  Other property, plant and equipment (continued) g)  HAbWE - B Bt (A1)
Where parts of an item of property, plant and EWE  BEERZEEE Z2TH
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or HoBrREAFHE - BE 2
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable ERASGEE TR 2 HEE
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated BEESA  SEHMSDHFTE
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its e - BEZAFERFHLREF
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually. MEE (INE) BEFHE -

h)  Leased assets h) R E

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as being held under finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, with the following
exceptions:

- property held under operating leases
that would otherwise meet the definition
of an investment property is classified
as investment property on a property-
by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if
held under a finance lease (see note 1(f));
and
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

(CONTINUED)
h)  Leased assets (continued)
(continued)

- land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the Group, or taken over

from the previous lessee.

ii)  Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are

charged to profit or loss in the accounting period

in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease term
except where the property is classified as an
investment property (see note 1(f)) or is held for

development for sale (see note 1(j)(ii)).

52 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7

1. BEEEHEOR (8)

h)  ALEEAE ()

i)

11)

TH B 77 B & 2 o

(#8)

-  BEREEEORES
Rzt mEAF
EEEENE FEE
BrEFRALE
s 2 N FHED FR
E AT BIRE
BMEBLOFAEARE
HEBEEFERIEL
ERLFA RGN -
BEmE - BEER
ZHREAKREEER
FIMFE 2R - sk
WERIEBAZEER
=ped Sl

AE A2
MEAREEBRERD
EMEEZER  ARE
HEFHZAREREE
HmREz et MER
NEHEEmRME I
MEHEMEEEEFRE
RAEEEETEL 2 W
RPN - HEEER
BREREZSBEFAR
BB ZAXE D - HBEMR
THEEAZ G HHER
FEHEmRMRE -

BREBEQEROMBAE L
2 W B P A A T ER 9 A
EHEEE WZUED
MAREME(RMFEM)
ol 15 1E 3 R 1t & A1 O
(BHFEG)G)) »



Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IFF /¥

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

i) Impairment of assets

0

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and
other current and non-current receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost or are
classified as available-for-sale securities are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the

following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;

and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity

instrument below its cost.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEEHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
i)  Impairment of assets (continued) ) AW ()
i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity i) EBERIRAGE N %
securities and other receivables (continued) B R Al K 2
(%)

EFHEETMERERE A
BATHAEE MERE

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries, the
impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment
with its carrying amount in accordance
with note 1(i)(ii). The impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount in accordance with
note 1(i)(ii).

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IFF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEEHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
i)  Impairment of assets (continued) ) AWML ()
i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity 1) FEETE R IR 75 5 14 2 7

Bl JE W I i (]

securities and other receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the

(#7)

AHRERAERE - &
EERBERD - M

decrease can be linked objectively to an BRR A B E el
event occurring after the impairment loss e E B 1 18 B
was recognised, the impairment loss is ERFEHBE - AR
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal BEEEgERERE
of an impairment loss shall not result in the O - REE R R [E
asset’s carrying amount exceeding that TEEYEAERE S
which would have been determined had no BHRHEENTEFE
impairment loss been recognised in prior RERRREEIEZ
years. B e

For available-for-sale securities, the - BuUHEEZREM
cumulative loss that has been recognised = ERAFERE
in the fair value reserve is reclassified to PHRRAZRHEES
profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative BEFHEEERE -
loss that is recognised in profit or loss is RiBmERER 25
the difference between the acquisition EESBERWEKAR
cost (net of any principal repayment (B EFEMASER
and amortisation) and current fair value, NG ) MIRIT A
less any impairment loss on that asset B2 Z8  BEEN
previously recognised in profit or loss. NRIZBEEREZRE

PEERHREEE -

Impairment losses recognised in profit or A HERARFHD
loss in respect of available-for-sale equity WEBBNERER
securities are not reversed through profit FAER - BTN EE
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair MBI AL - Hig
value of such assets is recognised in other ZEENFEZEM
comprehensive income. EnE R EMEEIR

R -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEAEHBOR (5
(CONTINUED)
i)  Impairment of assets (continued) ) AWML ()
i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity i) REHERIEARZE SN 7
securities and other receivables (continued) BB A W K 2
(#F)

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in

profit or loss.
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1.

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

i)

Impairment of assets (continued)

ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to identify indications that the property, plant
and equipment (other than properties carried
at revalued amounts) may be impaired or, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit).

1.

BE = AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 4 H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU Tt E)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

i)

Impairment of assets (continued)

ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or

value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable

amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’'s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which

the reversals are recognised.
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1.

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 bl

B E— AR = — I
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LIi#ICi]{H)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
J) Inventories
i) Horticultural services

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the standard cost basis
(which approximates the average actual cost)
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and

condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated

costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense

in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #% & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

j) Inventories (continued)
ii)  Property development
Inventories in respect of property development
activities are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost and net realisable values
are determined as follows:

- Property under development for sale

The cost of properties under development
for sale comprises specifically identified
cost, including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, materials
and supplies, wages and other direct
expenses, an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing cost capitalised
(see note 1(t)). Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less
estimated costs of completion and costs to

be incurred in selling the property.

- Completed property held for sale
In the case of completed properties
developed by the Group, cost is
determined by apportionment of the total
development costs for that development
project, attributable to the unsold
properties. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less costs to be

incurred in selling the property.

The cost of completed properties held for
sale comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

60 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7

1.

EEEEralBOR (50

1)

#H (H)
i) YHEEE
HYEEREDHEE T

SRR R R E
B2 RIEENE - AR
TRRFEHEH XM ¢

- RELHEZER®
CUES
FFHEZERTY
EZ A B B SR
EZKA - BREWE
TR AR BRE-
MEEME  TER
HERERZRA
R AR DI
ZEERARER
ZEE KA (R M T
1(t)) o AIEEIRFELE
EEFEER A T
REEMEMELZ
DN

- REREZERME
SEEHRTHRYE
LA R ERIA
B REWEIG#
RABRARNZEDE
E o AIBBIFER M
FHEERMGEFTHEY
EELEZKE -

FrFh & 2%
ZRABEMERE
BRAS ~ B - LA
M FEERERE
o B MR Z
HAMRA o



Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2012

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

k)

)

m)

n)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less

allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest

method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 1(g)(i), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liguid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.

BE = AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE FE— A=A HIFEE

(LU TTtHE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

o) Employee benefits

i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to

defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect

would be material, these amounts are stated at

their present values.

it)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by

having a detailed formal plan which is without

realistic possibility of withdrawal.

p) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant

amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,

and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous

years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2012

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

p)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from

unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary differences or in periods into which a tax
loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

BE = AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. BEEEHEOR (8)
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P14 BE (4)
BEERA 2 BERBETINBIK
BEEKABERARUBKRSEE
MFTE5 2 AREE - BERKE
FHEZIREEZ AT MR AR
ERZ8 - BENIREEI A A
i AR B R 2 T 75 5 1B K i AR B
R SR P

BETERZERERIN - AA
BELERBERBENMNELERIBEE
(RIER KRB A REE L 2 R
HABAEZEESAER)H
WHER  BIAZFFHER A T HIA
ERNEZRMELRENRREEY
RRERDGEN  BEAEER
ERRAVERZEEMELE 2
H o BELERMARR BB
WELF-ERHEREH I
BHIERELR A THRERE
R ZF—HESRERIAEEM
EEREERA TREO%EE
HEREE - FRERA R
ERERITERNUFHEARAR
0 AT IR R 1B S I e P EE £ VIR
ERIBEER - TERAR—%
A - BIZAFH K SRR — B A B K
F-ERHEREENEZR X
BHERAEHABRESERZ
HAf e e .

Annual Report 2012 & — " 4F4EH 63



Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #% & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

p)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they

will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair
value in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 1(f), the amount of deferred tax recognised
is measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of those assets at their carrying value at the
reporting date unless the property is depreciable and
is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that

sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEEEHEOR (4)
(CONTINUED)
p)  Income tax (continued) p) DBl ()
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and BVERT 18 45 e N2 SE 0 18 45 64 LA
movements therein, are presented separately from RERZEHHEEIREINR
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are PTHhiE - AEERFEUAT 25
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax IMESE - MARRISAEEHES
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company UAREHIBEEFETBEEY
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off EEREN  AEBIEAES R
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the REABIB G ERE - MIELTEH A
following additional conditions are met: B ER BRI IR &8 B
- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, - MAHNEEELEAEM
the Company or the Group intends either to RN TN Y
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and OSSR NEE - SR
settle the liability simultaneously; or BREEREREEE X
—  in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, - HECHEBEEEREBEAM
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same T R EBEERBGEMRE
taxation authority on either: EZRER T AR —EB

TEHERR Pl -

—  the same taxable entity; or — BB AR—EHH
ELIVAR-17

- different taxable entities which, in each - HTEHHEL 8

future period in which significant amounts R —{ERRERE -

of deferred tax liabilities or assets are BORLEI TR 2 R

expected to be settled or recovered, intend HAEENEEREE

to realise the current tax assets and settle A EE S B - 5T

the current tax liabilities on a net basis or EILUFRE R RFRAK

realise and settle simultaneously. HzBmEEERESR

AN BT 1B & B ok Rl

SRR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #% & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEFHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent q) e MR - M RSk
liabilities £
i) Financial guarantees issued i) 2 ISR

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e., the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee (being the
transaction price, unless the fair value can
otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group's policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition

of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or
loss over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 1(q)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
Group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount
of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed
the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee, that is, the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2012

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

ii)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected

to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

BE = AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. BEEEHEOR (8)

q)  PrERiZ B - A R AR
£ (40)

11)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #{% % — "

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

FfZH =1t —HIEFE

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

r)  Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or

loss as follows:

i) Sale of properties

When properties under development are
sold, income is recognised when the property
development is completed with the relevant
occupation permit issued by the Authorities
and the significant risks and rewards of the
ownership of the properties are passed to the
buyers. Deposits and instalments received on
properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition are recorded as forward sales

deposits and instalments received.

ii)  Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
at the customers’ premises which is taken to
be the point in time when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value

added tax or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.

iii)  Service income

Service income is recognised when the relevant

services are rendered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2012

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

r) Revenue recognition (continued)

v)

vi)

vii)

Dividends
- Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right

to receive payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the

investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using

the effective interest method.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in

which they are earned.

Management fee income
Management fee income is recognised at the
time when the services are rendered.

Ee S

FtZH=A—HIFFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. BEEEHEOR (8)
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vii)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #% & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

s)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange

reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or

loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2012

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

u)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #% & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEEEHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
u)  Related parties (continued) w  BEAE ()
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) 8 FF & T B AF ] & 14
following conditions applies (continued): BiEREAEREEHE
(#&) -
(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture (ih —HEBARS—HTE
of the other entity (or an associate or joint HEEE N Rl EE D
venture of a member of a group of which ¥ (HE5—EBEAK
the other entity is a member). BRRIZEEETK
BRRAIZBERAIRK
EEMDE) -

(il Both entities are joint ventures of the same (i) MEEBHREA—ZF
third party. =HMEERE -
(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity (ivi —HEBARE=FE
and the other entity is an associate of the BHNEERLE M5
third entity. —EBRBAR%E=FE
R AR o
(v The entity is a post-employment benefit (v) ERRAREENEK
plan for the benefit of employees of either SEBEECEEM
the Group or an entity related to the Group. {E B M)z 5% 37 HO Bk B
BAIETE
(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled (vi) EEX@AMHBIAT
by a person identified in (a). ?’ﬁ%ﬁ@v\ LRI o
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) B (a)() Pk B A %
influence over the entity or is a member ERBBEATE K
of the key management personnel of the EZEB(H%EE
entity (or of a parent of the entity). HERAR)EEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BREEFHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
u)  Related parties (continued) u)  BEAL ()
Close members of the family of a person are those AN BT R REER B8 TE AR A] &7
family members who may be expected to influence, or 2 SXZBEAZEMMEZE
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the BRXIHHNRERKE -
entity.
v)  Segment reporting v)  ABEEE

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business

and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated

if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #% & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 13 and 24 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to valuation of investment
properties and financial instruments. Other key sources of

estimation uncertainty are as follows:

a)  Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives, after
taking into account the estimated residual value. The
Group reviews annually the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any. The depreciation expense
for future periods is adjusted if there are significant

changes from previous estimates.

b) Valuation of inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value at the end of the reporting period.
Net realisable value is determined on the basis of
the estimated selling price less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. The management
estimates the net realisable value for inventories
based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current
market conditions. In addition, the management
performs an inventory review on a product-by-product
basis at the end of each reporting period and assesses

the need for write down of inventories.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2012

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

)

d)

Allowance for impairment of doubtful debts

Allowance for impairment of doubtful debts are
assessed and provided based on the directors’
regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation of
collectibility. A considerable level of judgement is
exercised by the management when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of each
individual customer. Any increase or decrease in the
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts would

affect profit or loss in future years.

Current taxation and deferred taxation

Determining income tax provisions involves
judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The management evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are set
up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in tax legislation. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for tax losses not yet used and temporary
deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets
can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against
which the unused tax credits can be utilized, the
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management's
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the

deferred tax asset to be recovered.

2.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
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KRR BB 2 (E(IE RS &
ARRFE 28 -

BT i B I R A A B I
BEMSHERSRHRXLRZS
RIS ERIZ O HIE - BIEERY
HERBEXHHOHRBEE - WaHR
HENREER ASEEME
MEBELXHORBEE - A
RBBIAROMBIER - BER
REERMAN BB EN
ERERMER - ARNIRERIE
BERRERAT LS LI A%
AT IR & B R A0 0 R 2R g AR
HMAEES @®R - IAREER
I JE A SRR IER A A A]
Bl - ARBETHEHNEEEDN
aPfh - AnRAR AT BERE TS BE R IR
ERBEENARRERMNE &
SRREIETEHRIBEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #% 3 — 44— H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICH]H)

3. TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are property
development, property management, property construction,
provision of horticultural services and securities trading.

Turnover represents proceeds from sales of properties,
revenue from provision of property management services
and revenue from provision of horticultural services. The
amount of each significant category of revenue recognised
in turnover during the year is as follows:

3. BEH

/8 £,
=™K

ERBELEMEZR
R EEE RS 2 W Rk B R
BERE W - FANERRER

ZE—ERRABR 22 BWT

AEEZEIBEBRMERR WX
B mERE RHREZRBEE

o =

2012 2011

—E-——F %

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBT FAET

Gross proceeds from properties sold KB B HEYE 2 Sk IBRE - 42,329

Revenue from provision of property REREMEEE RS 2 W 413 527
management services

Revenue from provision of RERPEREARE < W 4,216 3,865

horticultural services
4,629 46,721
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE A A= —HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

OTHER REVENUE AND NET (LOSS)/ 4. JfbBaE R Ol), BN S8
INCOME
2012 2011
—E2——_F =5
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiExT FAT
Other revenue Hiug s
Interest income LA EFAERER
on financial assets not BRVEEZ M EWA
at fair value through profit or loss
— Interest income from banks —RITFEWA 451 737
Management fee income (note 27(c)(i)) EEBA (FFE27()) 2,367 -
Rentals receivable from operating TR W ®
leases 544 -
Others Hith 314 90
3,676 827
Other net (loss)/income Hith (B518) WA T8
Loss on disposal of fixed assets LEREEE 2 EE (3) (1)
Revaluation losses on buildings BFEHEBER (24) (92)
Available-for-sale securities: AHEERS
reclassified from equity BERENDE
— on impairment —RE (1,800) (300)
Fair value gain on transfer of investment &Y EEE S
property to other property, plant and HmzE - BB
equipment N &t 2 R EW - 50
Waiver of commission payable* FERHAeERR* - 5,491
Write-back of provision N3
for construction costs el 1,452 -
(375) 5,148
* During the year ended 31 December 2011, the property agent agreed HE-_T——F+-A=+—HILF
to waive its commission for certain sale transactions. E MERBARERETHERSH
REMAE -

Annual Report 2012 & — " 4F4EH 77



Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

5. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 5. BRBEw ks 4
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: FRELRISEE Mk ¢
2012 2011
—BE--F —=—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT FH&T
(a) Finance costs (a) BERA
Total interest expense on LN FEFABRZ
financial liabilities not at fair CRIBEN SRS
value through profit or loss: 4BE
- Interest on bank borrowings — BN AT B
wholly repayable within BB 2 R1T
five years BHERE 3 16

(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) &I A

emoluments) (BREEEHS)
Contributions to defined contribution FERINGT IR
retirement plan (note 11) (FFEE11) 284 135
Salaries, wages and other benefits e s TEREMEF 20,592 10,301
20,876 10,436
(¢c) Otheritems (¢) HAnEHE
Amortisation of land lease premium MHE T &R 22 12
Depreciation of e =N
property, plant and equipment HfETE 437 931
Auditors’ remuneration Z RN &
— audit services —EZRTE 420 420
— other services — EAthfR 7% 60 60
Operating lease charges: EEMOAL -
minimum lease payments . EMELAR
— hire of plant and machinery — AR ks 1 9
— hire of other assets (including —HAHEMBEE
property rentals) (BiEMEES) 4,001 2,827
Cost of inventories (note 17(c)) FEA (FEE17(c) 900 31,379
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IFF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

6. INCOME TAX 6. Pififi
a)  Taxation in the consolidated income statement a)  EEAWERNZBIE
No Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years ended 31 HRAEERRESFEARNLEEE
December 2012 and 2011 has been provided for as the WAL ET ERRBUR T - AR MR E
Group has no estimated assessable profits arising in HBE_Z——_FR-_ZE——F
Hong Kong for both years. TZA=T—HIEFEZEER
SBIBAE
b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting loss b) R B A 5L 2 B B S B
at the applicable tax rates: RoEiN gkl
2012 2011
—EB-F —ZT—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FiExT FAT
Loss before taxation PRI AIEE (28,611) (22,825)
Notional tax on loss before MATEE 2 BRBIE -
taxation, calculated at the rates }*ﬁﬁﬁ ERERER
applicable to profits in the RaFlz HEFTE
jurisdictions concerned (4,721) (3,766)
Tax effect of non-deductible TR B A 2B
expenses Fa 817 567
Tax effect of non-taxable income FERTAZ BT E (74) (130)
Tax effect of unused tax losses RERZ ARBRIBEE
not recognised 2SR 4,045 3,444
Tax effect of prior years’ tax losses ~ ANFEA@ETFE 28
utilised this year EE s BgEe e (2) (68)
Others EAh, (65) (47
Actual tax expense HEEHIERS - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

7. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7. HHEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 161 of RBEEBRATEIE 161 GEECES
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: [ER NN
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2012
fee in kind bonuses  contributions Total
i A-4:1 -2z
E2 0k RENFIE MERA  RAGHEES ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL ThEL ThL
Executive directors: BITEE
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick, Ene
Chief Executive THEH, - 2,810 100 - 2910
Cheong Kim Pong EeE - - 100 - 100
Cheong Sim Eng EaR - - 100 - 100
Cheong Hooi Kheng EEH - 1,143 - 14 1,157

Independent non-executive directors; B IFH{TESE :

Chan Yee Hoi, Robert BLLE 140 - - - 140
Leung Wing Ning PxE 140 = - - 140
Kwik Sam Aik P=% 140 = - - 140

420 3,953 300 14 4,687
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IFF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7. A4 ()
(CONTINUED)
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2011
fee in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e EE 2
EEZ 0k RENFIR B RIKGEIER ait
HKS" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000
TiEn TiEr Titn Tin Fi5n
Executive directors: BITEE:
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick, BEng

Chief Executive ok - 1,485 - - 1,485
Cheong Kim Pong BeE - - - - -
Cheong Sim Eng BHR - 203 - 2 205
Cheong Hooi Kheng (appointed EE VG N3

on 24 May 2011) hAZTHAEZME) - 440 - 4 444
Independent non-executive directors: BV IEHTESE
Kan Fook Yee (resigned on 22 BEn(R=E—%

April 2011) MA=+=-BEIT) 40 - - - 40
Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic PER(R=2—%

(retired on 24 May 2011) AAZTMARE) - - - - -
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert RINE 130 - - - 130
Leung Wing Ning RkE 130 - - - 130
Kwik Sam Aik (appointed P=m(R=F—%

on 24 May 2011) AAZTHBEZM) 87 - - - 87
Non-executive directors: FHTEE
Lim Gheg (retired W& (MZE—F

on 24 May 2011) LAZTEEERE) - - - - -
Cheong Hooi Kheng* (appointedas &2 * (R=FT——F

executive director on 24 May 2011)  RA-TNBEEZE

RRTES) - - - - -
387 2,128 - 6 2,521

* During the period from 1 January 2011 to 24 May 2011, Ms. Cheong

Hooi Kheng's directorship is alternate to Madam Lim Ghee.

* B-F % A-AE-%—F=
A=A LR - SR A
Lt 2 BEES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors of
the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Company or as compensation for loss of office. There was
no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the years ended 31
December 2012 and 2011.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one
(2011: one) is a director whose emoluments are disclosed in
note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the

o 4 (F)

REE-T——FR=-F——F+=A
=+—BLEFE AEEHERAR
AU E B AT E ARSI S B A
REIRERMABK ZE KBREE -
REE-T——FR=-F—F+=A
=T —HIEFE  BETURHEREE
EREXRERETAME -

I W B L

hEsmHFMALR  —R(ZF——
F-RB)REF HEMRME7H
BE - AmE(ZT——F: HE)

other four (2011: four) individuals are as follows: AL FHMEEENT
2012 2011
—E2——_F —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHEx T
Salaries and other emoluments e M E b B 9,858 3,638
Discretionary bonuses E)IEIE4L 427 647
Retirement scheme contributions RONGTEIE TR 55 18
10,340 4,303
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10.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 8.

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE = AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The emoluments of the four (2011: four) individuals with the

I i 0 A L (380)

ME(ZFE——%F: OZ)&XFHHMA

highest emoluments are within the following bands: T2 FHMELTEER
2012 2011
—E-——F =T
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE ANEL
Nil - HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 - 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T 1,500,000 77T - 3
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 77T 2,000,000,5 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 77T 2 2,500,000 ,8 7T = -
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 77T 2 3,000,000 87T 2 -
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 77T 2 3,500,000 87T = -
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 &JTE 4,000,000 7T 1 -
4 4
There was no amount paid during the years ended REBEEZZE——FR-_FT—F+=
31 December 2012 and 2011 to the five highest paid A=+— EIJtiJ* hEEaHHE

employees as inducement to join or upon joining the Group

or as compensation for loss of office.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a loss of HK$4,405,000 (2011:
HK$11,816,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

LOSS PER SHARE

a)  Basic loss per share
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of HK$28,611,000 (2011: HK$22,825,000)
and the weighted average number of approximately
2,631,652,000 (2011: 2,631,652,000) ordinary shares

in issue during the year.

BEMEE N EMRE UR3IEE
MBEAREBHAERIMALRDN RS R
BE -

9. AAVRERFA AMEAL R
ARBIEEFBEAEBOEAEBER
FERARAMBERERPERE 2
4,405,000 2 BB (= ——F :
11,816,000/87T) °

10. B H
a) e YN k|

BREXREEDREBEFAERQF
L3 IR R 4G E5 18 28,611,000 48
(Z=——4% 122,825,000/
TL) REBITEREAZ INETEY
#)2,631,652,000 (== ——
4 :2,631,652,000%) & -

al
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10.

11.

12.

HE E
(LT HE)

FofZH =1t —HIEFEE

LOSS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

b)  Diluted loss per share
Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per
share as the Company does not have dilutive potential
ordinary shares for the years ended 31 December 2012
and 2011.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT
PLAN

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“"MPF Scheme"”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$25,000 (HK$20,000 prior to June 2012). Contributions
to the plan vest immediately.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by a mixture of both business lines (products
and services) and geography. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally to
the executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following four reportable segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.

- Property development: this segment develops and
sells the Group's residential properties. Currently the
Group's activities in this regard are carried out in Hong
Kong.

84 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7

10.

11.

12.

)5 4 ()

b) R EH
HRBE_E——FK_FT——
FH+-RB=+—BLEFEART
WEAABEBETHSYE LR
B MEREEEERGRER

EHRAER o
P5E Bk R Pk il B
AEERBEBR LR MERAERF S F
PSRN EBEERABGHEEREANREM
ZREERITHREIERTERF B ([ 8
HRERFE]) - B MERTEEE

AHBYEEATEZ R EHRIURK
ETE  RERFMAESTE - BE
kEESBEZEEBEBRAZ5% M
ZETEES . BERAEERALRA
250008 L(R=_F—ZFNARA
20,0008 7T) © st Bl Z R BING 55
B o

vig k&

REBRTASMEDEREE
ZEDRIIIRE B EE (ERNRS)
AR [ 853 o AR E BB IR D B &
RAFEMEMARRIELERRE
ENRTEEARZ2HERN TR -
273 REBEZFAT ME 2 &R
e WESERKLE D HEE T UEBK
AT 2RO -

- DEER:ZOBPERMEER
SEEEYE - AEBRE UL
RRZIERBHUNEE -



Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

a)

Horticultural services: this segment provides
horticultural services. Currently the Group's activities

in this regard are carried out in Hong Kong.

Property management and other related business:
this segment mainly provides building management
services. Currently the Group's activities in this regard

are carried out in Hong Kong.

Securities trading: this segment engages in the trading
of securities for short-term investment purposes. The
operations of securities trading were introduced to
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2012.
Currently the Group's activities in this regard are

carried out in Hong Kong.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Company’s executive directors monitor the results,
assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable

segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of available-for-
sale financial assets, deferred tax assets and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include trade
creditors, accruals and other payables attributable to
the sales activities of the individual segments and bank
borrowings managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

BE = AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. 23 ()

BERYE: 2o BRHEZER
%o AEEBRERERARZME
EBHALREE o

MEBEENEMBBBEER %0
BIERHBTERRE - A&
B3R SRR Z PR A R B9 L
NEE °

BHERG B ENEFERS
BRI ERAR - AEEPNEE
-+ A=+—H1t
FESIABHRINEE - A%
ERERUARNEESEMANE
7 o

><>P

i

M

7

o WAL A KA
AN BERR R B EE
REAMER -2z KR
AMITESRUTEREITER
ENRZEE  BEMAGE:

PREEBRREMERY BVE
ENRBEE MO HHESR
BE BEERBEEREMAR
BERIN - nBBEREREMND
BZHELTDREZESRE
FEHE A R E BN ARIA K 3R TT
BE BEOBREEEE -

Woas B TS E R
T HERRIN (REHE
G ERREEAEEE LS
BN PRERE S -

EE & M
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
“adjusted EBITDA" i.e.,
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation”, where

“adjusted earnings before

“interest” is regarded as including investment income
and "depreciation and amortisation” is regarded as
including impairment losses on non-current assets.
To arrive at adjusted EBITDA the Group’s earnings are
further adjusted for items not specifically attributed to
individual segments, such as directors’ and auditor’s
remuneration and other corporate administration
costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning adjusted EBITDA, management is provided
with segment information concerning revenue
(including inter segment sales), interest income
and expense from cash balances and borrowings
managed directly by the segments, depreciation,
amortisation and impairment losses and additions to
non-current segment assets used by the segments in
their operations. Inter-segment sales are priced with
reference to prices charged to external parties for
similar orders.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

a)

BE = AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. 23 ()

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) a)  MEUEAL - WAl XA (A1)
Information regarding the Group's reportable REE—ZT——FR-FT——F
segments as provided to the Company’s executive T A=+—RBUEFEZERY
directors for the purposes of resource allocation and B 2 il D R IR M A A BT
assessment of segment performance for the years EERTEAEAEERE S
end 31 December 2012 and 2011 is set out below. BN T o
Property management
Property Horticultural and other Securities
development services related business trading Total
VEET BERE DEERRAMEEER B it
2012 20M 2012 01 2012 01 2012 M 012 201
&2 F-% B-CF 3-F C&-CF f-f §-CF CR-f CR-F R4
HKS000  HKS000 ~ HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Thn T Thn A TEm  TEn TR TR T T
Revenue from exteml REHIEREZ
customers i - 42309 4216 3860 43 57 - - 4629 46,721
Inter-seqment revenue pElie - - 4 48 m - - - 161 i)
Reportable segment revenue = ENE -0 4,265 3913 525 57 - - 4790 46769
Reportable segment (loss)/profit 5578 (§2) /7
(adjusted EBITDA) (iE2ERITDA) (22,024) (11,538) 436 661 510 561 31 - (21,081) (10,316)
Interest income HEBA 12 513 - - - - - - 12 513
Interest expenses f8F% - - - - - - - - - -
Depreciation and amortisation ~~ ERFERZH
forthe year ‘ - {2 [5) (34) (17) (17 - - (22) (59)
Firvdueganontansferof ~ RENZEAE
ivesment propery toother %
property, plant and RiERAR
equipment LATENE - - - - - B0 - - - ]
Income tax expense FERL - - - - - - - - - -
Reportable segment assets ~~ H=AEEE 26041 26413 988 1007 584 39 523 - 281 265386
Addiions to non-curent FRREER
seqment assets during theyear ~ AFEE - - - 13 - - - - - 13
Reportable segment iabiities ~ $=7EE[ 1918 23810 360 K 18 u bij - 195 1

For the year ended 31 December 2012, revenue of
approximately HK$1,070,000 was derived from a single
external customer who contributed over 10% of total
revenue of the Group. This revenue was attributable to
the horticultural services segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, revenues
of approximately HK$12,286,000, HK$10,447,000,
HK$10,281,000 and HK$9,315,000 were derived from
four single external customers respectively, each
of them contributed over 10% of total revenue of
the Group. These revenues were attributable to the
property development segment.

Hz—Z2——-—F+=-A=+—H
LFEE AEIINFEFEER
25 491,070,000 7T c ZEF
BERIBBAEEBNZEZ 10% ©
Zh=REEEREDE -

HE—Z——F+=A=+—H
IEFE  HRAMEE IR
FEAWZE#412,286,000% 7T
10,447,000/ 7T * 10,281,000/ 7T
9,315,000 T° Z E R P
WEBMYBREAEE AN
10% ° ZEWEEBYEERRY

I

o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 12. A% ()
b)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or b) W& BB - BRASER - B
loss, assets and liabilities 7 R A 2 ik
2012 2011
—E2—_F =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Revenue e
Reportable segment revenue WwE DB 4,790 46,769
Elimination of inter-segment D TR
revenue (161) (48)
Consolidated turnover e 4,629 46,721
Profit & A
Reportable segment loss HwEDIEBE (21,041) (10,316)
Elimination of inter-segment D LR
profit (161) (48)
Reportable segment loss REREBEIINEF 2
derived from Group's external mEDEEE
customers (21,202) (10,364)
Other revenue and net (loss)/income EAbUES N (E518) WA F58 1,305 434
Depreciation and amortisation T R 6 (459) (943)
Finance costs BhE A (3) (16)
Unallocated corporate expenses RPBEARZH (8,252) (11,936)
Consolidated loss before taxation BRI RIAR S E1E (28,611) (22,825)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE = AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 12. A% ()
b)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or b) WA RBGE - A E - &
loss, assets and liabilities (continued) e K B 2 SR ()
2012 2011
—E——F ZT—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets WmEDBEE 268,136 265,586
Elimination of inter-segment 5 > 48 e e W sk E
receivables - —
268,136 265,586
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESRERE 1,370 6,950
Unallocated corporate assets KB RARIEE
— cash and cash equivalents -RELREEEY 86,465 121,088
— other assets - EhEE 4,166 3,424
Consolidated total assets e BERR 360,137 397,048
Liabilities =L
Reportable segment liabilities WESEAR 19,533 24,228
Elimination of inter-segment WD LR FOR
payables - —
19,533 24,228
Unallocated corporate liabilities Ao AREE 1,191 1,166
Consolidated total liabilities e BERs 20,724 25,394
c) Geographic information ©) H ik TER

The geographical location of customers is based on
the location at which the services were provided or the
goods delivered. For the years ended 31 December

2012 and 2011, all external customers of the Group are

located in Hong Kong. The geographical location of the

specified non-current assets is based on the physical
location of the asset, in the case of property, plant and
equipment. As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, all

specified non-current assets of the Group are located

in Hong Kong.

B P AE # [ 12 AT HR 4 AR 7S 3k
EYREMTEHE S -  BHEZ
T——FrR=E—F+=A
=+—RHIEFE - AEBEMAEH
HEFPHMRED - FBEEFERD
BEMTHEZREEERMET
(AME  BELEZEMS)
D RZE—ZFRZT——F
+=ZA=+—8 " A&EEFAERE
EIRBEEHIMREE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

13. FIXED ASSETS 13. Al ¥
a)  The Group a)  ARHEM
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own Buildings  Furniture,
use under held forown  equipment Total
finance  use carried and other Investment fixed
leases at fair value fixed assets Sub-total property assets
REERE
AHEER UATE B R
A& 1 REf EEEE
2R BEERET BEEEE a5 REME e

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TER TR TAR

Cost or valuation: RESHE
At 1 January 2011 N_E——F—f—H 600 300 5,165 6,065 350 6,415
Additions RE - - 64 64 - 64
Disposals e - - (80) (80) - (80)
Transferred fromy(to) #pH,/(85) 370 30 - 400 (400) -
Deficit on revaluation BiEE - (92) - (92) - (92)
Less: elimination of o REITEHE

accumulated depreciation - ) - 8 - 8)
Fair value adjustment AFERE - - - - 50 50
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F

TZRE-RB S 90_____ .7 280 5149 6349 ________ T 6349 __
Representing: HER
Cost RE 970 - 5,149 6,119 - 6,119
Valuation - 2011 GHE-—%— - 230 - 230 - 230
970 230 5,149 6,349 - 6,349

Cost or valuation: RENGE
At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—-Hf—H 970 230 5,149 6,349 - 6,349
Additions NE - - m m - m
Disposals HE - - (58) (58) - (58)
Deficit on revaluation BB - (24) - (24) - (24)
Less: elimination of W BRITELH

accumulated

depreciation - (6) - (6) - (6)
At 31 December 2012 RZZ-Z%

TzR=t-8B Im___ 200 522 _____ 6432 ______ . 6432 _
Representing: HER:
Cost RiE 970 - 5,262 6,232 - 6,232
Valuation - 2012 fhE-—F-—% - 200 - 200 - 200
970 200 5,262 6,432 - 6,432
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13. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

a)

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE = AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

13, [ % A (4)

The Group (continued) a) KM (40)
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own Buildings Furniture,
use under held forown  equipment Total
finance use carried and other Investment fixed
leases atfairvalue fixed assets Sub-total property assets
IMRIERE
AR DATE B RE
i) ] REM EEEE
ZER BEERET EEEE Pt REME BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TEL FEL FER TEL FET
Accumulated amortisation ~ ZHEHERITE
and depreciation:
At 1 January 2011 R=Z——%—A—-H 184 - 3,607 3,791 - 3,791
Charge for the year FEEZH 12 8 923 43 - 943
Written back on disposals HERER - - (79) (79) - (79)
Elimination on revaluation BRI - 8 - 8 - 8
At 31 December 2011 RZE——%
toREt-B 196 S AL AT S e
Accumulated amortisation ZHBERIE:
and depreciation:
At 1 January 2012 R-2——%-f-H 196 - 4,451 4,647 - 4,647
Charge for the year REEXH 2 6 431 459 - 459
Written back on disposals HEREE - - (51) (51) - (51)
Elimination on revaluation BB - (6) - (6) - (6)
At 31 December 2012 R=E-—%
tZAR=t-B 28 S A8 509 .. 5049
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2012 i3
+-A=t-H 752 200 431 1,383 - 1,383
At 31 December 2011 WZE—F
+=A=+-H 774 230 698 1,702 - 1,702
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

13. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

13. [l s ¥ (1)

b)  Revaluation of buildings held for own use b) i S Z A
The buildings held by the Group for own use were RZE—ZFRZF—F+=
revalued as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 at their A=+—0 XEEZZETLY
open market value by reference to recent market X2HmSERS 2 ARTMEE
transactions in comparable properties. The valuations HEEERABF RZT—=F
as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 were carried out R=ZF——F+=ZA=+—8"
by Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited, HMEBRFE-ANTFREEREERE
who is an independent firm of surveyors and has ¥ERAERAR(RABIAE
among its staff members of the Hong Kong Institute of MEABBREBHEMES]
Surveyors with recent experience in the location and FEtzBTWHMRETHED
category of property being valued. B RERIBEUL 2K E
T o
The revaluation deficit of HK$24,000 (2011: E(HEAL 24,0008 T (=T ——
HK$92,000) has been recognised in profit or loss. % :92,00087) ERERKE
Had these buildings held for own use been carried W% FH1EE B TRKAR
at cost less accumulated depreciation, the carrying REWEINER AREREEH
amounts would have been HK$463,000 (2011: 7%463,0008 T(Z & — — F:
HK$483,000). 483,000/ 7T) °
¢)  The analysis of net book value of properties is as follows: ¢ PRRmTFEINT
2012 2011
—E——F —T——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FA&T

In Hong Kong R EE

— medium-term leases —FEIEE 952 1,004
Representing: BER :
Interests in leasehold land IR RLE M AFHE

held for own use under EREE T s

finance leases 752 774
Buildings held for own use AR FEIER 2 FEE

carried at fair value BRETF 200 230

952 1,004
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IFF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14. JAHE A " 2 B ¥
The Company
RAF]
2012 2011
—E——F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Unlisted shares, at cost KEMRGD - RE 1 1
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries TREREHEIBEFERERELE W &
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of EREBEIHBAT Y EE o
the Group.
Proportion of ownership interests
BAERRLA
Place of Particulars Group's
incorporation  of issued and effective Held by the Held by a
Name of company and operation  paid-up capital interest  Company subsidiary Principal activity
ALK BEATRAE Bz HALTF i — Bk
NEER 2EhY RAGHE ERER BB NEEE TEEH
Century Elegant Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% - 100% Provision of property
ENERAH &b HKS1 management services
1REE 1 AT SRR RENEEERE
Cheung Kee Garden Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Investment holding and
R EEBRAT &k HK$1 each and provision of
450,000 non-voting horticultural services
deferred shares REZRRER
of HK$1 each BEHRH%
100REREE T
2 3@ 450,000 %
BREE1ETL
ERZEELR
Donwin Property Limited ~ Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Property holding
RREZBRAA Bl HK$1 each NERR
2EBREE AT EER
Fort Property Management  Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Provision of
Limited &b HK$1 each management services
BENEERERAT 2EEREE AT LRk REEERY
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14. AW A w2 B (8)
(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interests
BRRRRLA
Place of Particulars Group's
incorporation  of issued and effective Held by the Held by a
Name of company and operation  paid-up capital interest Company subsidiary Principal activity
TMELR ERITRAR FRE  HALT iRl
DEIER E3E RAGHE ERER BE G TEEHK
Sui Chong Finance Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Provision of financing and
Limited BE HK$10 each management services
HENBARLA 2REREE 0BT 2 LBk and trading of securities
RUFEREBRE
REHRS
Sui Chong International Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Property holding
(HK) Limited 7B HK$10 each NERE
HEER (FE)ERAR REREE 0BT, EER
Sui Chong International Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100% Provision of property
Resources Limited BE of HK$1 each management and
HEERERBRAF 1,000 REREE 1 AT project management
L EER services
REMEFERR
R R R%
Super Homes Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK§1 ~ 100% - 100% Property development
BE each and 100 non-voting MEER
deferred shares of HK$0.3
gach
100BEREE1 BT
L@RR 100 REHREE
03B BRFERER
Vision Capital Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Investment holding
i HK$1 each REER

2REREE BT EER
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IFF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

15. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 15. Al 4 ik ¥
The Group The Company
r5E YN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—F--F —FF —F--F %
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET TET TET
Available-for-sale BRATETH
unlisted equity HERET
securities at fair value IR T 5 - 150 - -
Available-for-sale RAFEH
unlisted debt HERLET
securities at fair value EBES 1,370 6,800 1,370 6,800
1,370 6,950 1,370 6,800
As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group's available- R-F-——FR=-F-—F+=A
for-sale equity securities were individually determined to be =T—R - AREF S RARES
impaired on the basis of a material decline in their fair value TEE AT EBKAKE T HEEE
below cost which indicated that the cost of the Group's RIEERE  ERTEBZARER
investment in them may not be recovered. Impairment MR - 3 ERE R R IRE ()
losses on the investment were recognised in profit or loss in (i) Pt BOR B 48 58 5% PO e 38 (R B A
accordance with the policy set out in note 1 (i) (i) (see note 4). 4)
16. TRADING SECURITIES 16. 22 5hikioF
The Group
AEE
2012 2011
—F-=F —Ff
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Listed equity securities at fair value FHBRAES (RATE)
—in Hong Kong —&% 373 -
Unlisted equity securities at fair value JEETBRAFES (RRFE) 150 -
523 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

17. INVENTORIES

a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial

17.

R

a)  SIAGFMERRERANZAFRE

position comprise: I
The Group
N5

2012 2011
—E——F —ZE——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiExT FAET
Horticultural plants REEY 303 302
Completed properties held for sale BIEHET I 250,831 249,555
251,134 249,857

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, no inventory was
stated at net realisable value.

b)  The analysis of carrying amount of completed properties

RZB-——FR_F——F+_
A=+—RH UEGFEUTEER

FHEDIRR ©

b)  BRER AR A 2 58 T4 3k 2 MR i

held for sale is as follows: AHE
The Group
ASEE
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHBT THET
In Hong Kong BAERN
- long leases —&EHE 250,831 249,555
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IFF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

17. INVENTORIES (CONTINUED) 17. f#1 (&0)
¢)  The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as ¢  WER BBk RN R RS
an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: LR ¢

Horticultural plants Properties Total

BN LES st
2012 20 2012 2011 2012 2011
~8--f "% Z%F -“T-f B -“T-F%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Fign AL Tiégn AL Fign TR

Carrying amount of EEREZRAR
inventories sold 900 583 - 30,796 900 31,379
18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. B 5 B I il M R S
The Group The Company
KrEE N
2012 201 2012 2011
=F-=F —FF —F--F —EFF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THRT TEL THET TET
Amount due from a e — R B AR
subsidiary LB - - 260,103 262,606
Amount due from arelated B —fHREEAF]
company (note 27(b)) 2R (M 27(b)) 673 11 = -
Trade debtors B E 580 644 634 = -
Receivables for monies ERRIEIEE YR
held by the solicitor HERE
in accordance with the B IR
relevant property sale X
agreements 13,966 13,954 - -
Other debtors HivEUKART 734 577 - -
Loans and receivables ERRERHE 16,017 15,176 260,103 262,606
Rental and other deposits HeREfmke 1,918 1,401 = -
Prepayments EE 764 757 372 372
18,699 17,334 260,475 262,978

The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-

JFE W — Pl B J88 & B 2 FRIA T AR AR
free and has no fixed terms of repayment. B HEETISHE o

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be FMEZSREMEIEIE - BtER

—F R EI KRB o

recovered or recognised as expense within one year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. BB K U A RO ()
(CONTINUED)
a)  Ageing analysis a)  JRER B
Included in trade and other receivables are trade RE S RAMEWIRIEA - UK
debtors (net of impairment losses for bad and doubtful Z S RF (IR RIZRAMAEEE)
debts) with the following ageing analysis as of the end RmEBR 2RS0T -

of the reporting period :

The Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E2—_F =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEIT FH&T
Within 1 month —fEART 488 478
1 to 3 months —Z={@A 149 151
More than 3 months but less BiE=1EA
than 12 months B R+—EA 7 5
644 634
The Group's credit policy is set out in note 24(a). REBZEEREHNWFE
24(a) °
b)  Impairment of trade debtors b)  MEBCR B MRk Z WA
Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are EREWE SRR ZREEETD
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group FABERTDZA  RIEXREEE
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in MU el B RS R 2 e R AIE
which case the impairment loss is written off against Al RILER T REBE A
trade debtors directly (see note 1(i)(i)). BEREWE 5 8RR M (R
1)) ©
During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, BE_2——Hfk-_ZT—%F
there was no impairment loss made against trade +ZA=1+—BHLLFE TEE
debtors. FRIWE ZIRFURBEEIE
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

<)

Trade debtors that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired

are as follows:

BE = AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

18. B 5 B 30l M B X (480)

AT WA 2 HEWCR S Rk
1E B e A RIRR R TR B 2 & W
BHRKZIREDHTIAT ¢

The Group
rEE

2012 2011

=F-=F = F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FExT FA&T

Neither past due nor impaired BEAR@HATNARRE 488 478
Less than 1 month past due SemoR—ms 1 09 ------------ 137

More than 1 month past due BN —EA 47 19
. 25 156

644 634

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a number of customers for whom there was

no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the

balances are still considered fully recoverable.

BEARE AT AR BB 2 FE UK IR T
BRETHERYEERCHZE
5o

B E B R TR E < & YRR TD
BRETEAEEAR R IFEEAR
BZBUEP o ERAERLR -
ERERR BREEERLE
HIREXREH N BEBERTDRR
AEERE - WEARZ S EHR
TR E R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

19. Bl&RBLEHFEY

a)  Cash and cash equivalents comprise: a)  BERBESHEPE
The Group
rEH
2012 2011
—E-——F %
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Deposits with banks and BFERRIRTT R
other financial H 5 mirkrd
institutions PRETN 87,021 121,205
Cash on hand FEHE 7 -
Cash and cash equivalents AR K
in the consolidated statement LireRene
of financial position and Z2Re RReEHEY
consolidated statement
of cash flows 87,028 121,205
The Company
¥ /N
2012 2011
—E2—_F =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Deposits with banks FHRERIT R
and other financial EHAh & mtlrs
institutions ZIFR 4 5
Cash on hand FHzRE - -
Cash and cash equivalents VAR ER RS
in the statement MRSEEY
of financial position 4 5

At 31 December 2012, bank balances carried interest at
market rates which range from 0.00% to 0.45% (2011:

range from 0.00% to 2%) per annum.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE A A= —HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

19. Blé RBLE&%EY (8)

(CONTINUED)
b)  Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash used in b) BB EHEKE RN &Y
operations: 0k :
The Group
rEEH
2012 2011
=F—=-F —Z=—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
Loss before taxation BREIRIE R (28,611) (22,825)
Adjustments for: AT AE -
Fair value gain on transfer WEYFEEE
of investment property to other EmmE - BB K&
property, plant and equipment 2N ERE - (50)
Revaluation losses on buildings BFEhEE 24 92
Amortisation of leasehold land THE T #ds 22 12
Depreciation of other fixed assets HibEEEEFE 437 931
Available-for-sale securities: AHEHERS
reclassification from equity REEF DA
on impairment s 1,800 300
Finance costs b E RN 3 16
Interest income FLEMA (451) (737)
Net unrealised loss on trading R FBEFH 2 RER
securities E51E 558 -
Loss on disposal of fixed assets & ETE B ERE 1
Waiver of commission payable HEEMN e - (5,491)
Wirite-back of provision of FREERK AN 2 ]
construction costs (1,452) -
Changes in working capital: EBEESEE)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories & Ggm), m (2,359) 31,633
Increase in trading securities R G EHIE N (376) -
(Increase)/decrease in trade and E 5 & H A EUARIA
other receivables (38n), D (1,394) 6,915
Decrease in trade B 5 L EAENARIE
and other payables A (1,955) (323,991)
Cash used in operations KEMAZRE (34,306) (313,194)

Annual Report 2012 —F— " 4F4EHR 1 01



Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. BB B Al HE A MR
The Group The Company
rEE UNS|
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B-CF —Z——F ZE-CTF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx THT TET TET
Trade creditors EHE SRR 9,423 11,702 = -
Retentions payable EIHRE TR 2,474 2474 = -
Other creditors and HA MR
accrued charges RIERT S 8,827 11,037 754 653
Financial liabilities measured ~ $R# 4R 2515
at amortised cost ZERaR 20,724 25,213 754 653
All of the trade and other payables, apart from the retentions BERREBRIEN  TEE S NREM
payable, are expected to be settled within one year or are FEAEEEAARN —FASYNRIRESK
repayable on demand. B8 o
Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with RESRHEMEMNEKEERN  BENES
the following ageing analysis as at the end of the reporting RIEBRREHRARZRESTOT
period:
The Group
REE
2012 2011
—E-—F —ZT—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Within 1 month —(ERAT 4 7
After 1 month but within 3 months —EABETBB=(EA 10 -
After 3 months but within 6 months =EA%BETBBENEAR 246 -
Over 6 months BiA~E A 9,163 11,695
9,423 11,702
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IFF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

21. BANK BORROWINGS, UNSECURED 21, SUTAE B (JEHKH)
At 31 December 2012, the bank loan was repayable as RZE——F+=ZA=+—H " #17
follows: BEARUTHEEE
The Group
ki
2012 2011
=F-=F —TfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEIT FET
Within 1 year —FR - 181
The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including the term HESTEE(pERERER AH
loans repayable on demand, are carried at amortised cost. B TyIR ik s Rk AN B BR o
All the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2011 were RZE——F+ZA=+—HFRAR
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and carried interest at TEEHLUETHE  BETLESER
Hong Kong Dollars Prime Lending Rate of 5% per annum. RAEFTEEFE% ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

22. DEFERRED TAXATION

a)  Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:
The Group and the Company had no material deferred
tax liabilities not provided for at 31 December 2012 and
2011.

b)  Deferred tax assets not recognised
i) The Group
In accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 1(p), at 31 December 2012, the Group has
not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of HK$275,244,000 (2011:
HK$250,741,000) as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the tax losses can
be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not

expire under current tax legislation.

ii)  The Company
At 31 December 2012, the Company has
cumulative tax losses of HK$15,684,000 (2011:
HK$15,684,000) available for set-off against
future taxable profits for an unlimited period of
time. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of such cumulative tax losses as it is
not probable that future taxable profits against
which the tax losses can be utilized will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and such
tax losses are subject to the agreement with the

tax authority.

104 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7

22. JEREBLIH

a)

b)

A BB BB EAL

REENARBR-ZT——FR
TE T A=t HEE
EAIRERENERNELCHER

& o

AR 2 0 i B 0 R

i)

11)

A5 ]

BEMT P E 2 G5
K RZZ——F+=A
=t+—A  AEEWER
275,244,000 (Z2—
—4F 1 250,741,000787T) &
BRI RIBE B RERIEERIA
BE  BARATAMZHEA
AR R BT BEEE
R B R i ) LAVE R TE &S
BIEH A o RIBRITHE
ERR RS IEEELRE

N e S N
=+—HB  AAFAH
HERRERB R 2
ERBARAMNEEEAR
15,684,00087C (=& ——
4 115,684,000 7T ) © &
MZERABIEERER
EEHBEEE BAREER
B2 B Rl AR T KA
BE BE A R TR B RR B i A
EBEBERE A A
ZEBEERBESHEE
BRE - FAEE -



Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IFF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES 23. B B
a)  Movements in components of equity a)  HELRHLIR 2 2 S )
The reconciliation between the opening and REBZIFEERSHEKBD 2
closing balances of each component of the Group's H BB R s e 2 HIRE A R B
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated B EE - NQFHER . ER
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes BRI DR FEIRFERZ EET
in the Company’s individual components of equity BER T :

between the beginning and the end of the year are set

out below:
The Company ., A |
Capital
Share Share  redemption Contributed  Fairvalue Accumulated
capital ~ premium reserve surplus reserve losses Total
RAEH
kx  RiEE R HAEH LVERE  EREE 3
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000
TEn THT THL THL TR TR TéL
At 1 January 2011 W-%--F-A-H 131,582 4,785 121 234,897 1430 94,068 218747
Changes in equity for 2011: “5-ERREY.
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - (11,816) (11,816)
Other comprehensive income for the year  EREMZERA - - - - 2,200 - 2,200
Total comprehensive incomefloss for the year EAZEMA/(BE) 48 - - - - 2,200 (11,816) (9,616)
At31 December 2011 KB——EtZA=t-8 131,582 4,785 121 234,897 3630 (105889 269,131
At January 2012 H-2-—£-f-A 131,582 4,785 121 23897 3630 (105884) 269131
Changes in equity for 2012: “E-CEERRE:
Loss for the year EhER - - - - - (4,405) (4,405)
Other comprehensive loss for the year EREfREEE - - - - (3:630) = (3,630)
Total comprehensive loss for the year EREEERLE - - - - (3,630) (4,405) (8,035)
At 31 December 2012 W-E-—E+-f=1-A 131,582 4,785 il 234,897 - (110,289) 261,096
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 23. WA Ko fili il (%)

b)  Share capital b) AR
Authorised and issued share capital HEIE R C TR
2012 20M
—2-—F 2%
Number Number
of shares  Nominal value of shares  Nominal value
RIDEE & RiHEE HfE
‘000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
TR TET T FHT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of FREE0.05
HK$0.05 each AL LRk 3,000,000 150,000 3,000,000 150,000
Ordinary shares, issued and ZER 28T
fully paid: R&R
At 1 January and 31 December R=A—BRk
+-A=1+—-H 2,631,652 131,582 2,631,652 131,682
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive LR AEABRERTRE R
dividends as declared from time to time and are 2B BEAREg® TR
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the AE-—ZREE - FELTEAR
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard HARRZHHREEZARSE
to the Company's residual assets. &
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BB E— AR = I
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

<)

d)

Nature and purpose of reserves

i)

iii)

Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium account
and capital redemption reserve is governed by
the Bermuda Companies Act.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company and
the aggregate of the share capital and the share
premium accounts of the subsidiaries acquired.
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the Company may make distributions
to its members out of contributed surplus in

certain circumstances.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 1(s).

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-
sale securities held at the end of the reporting
period and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in notes 1(e) and 1(i)
(i).

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount

of reserves available for distribution to equity

shareholders of the Company was approximately
HK$124,608,000 (2011: HK$129,013,000).

23. WA Bl i (41)
o BEYERUR NG

d)

i)

1)

ii1)

J 17 i 167 5L A A 1 i 1
B A7 i 18 iR S & AN P [ 6
BeERXBREQRE
BT -

BAL B
ARARHABRBRIEARR A
B 81T B 2 T {8 B2 AT UL
BHBARZERAREN
HERARCEZHE - RIE
BRE-NAN-FRADE
(REFT)  ARARET
FETAREKERE S
TR A&k -

S i
EXHERESMBERRE
BB BEBRRELELZ
P ERE o ki IR R
Us) A SR BUREIE -

INTHE
AT EFEERENRS
KB ZAIMEEFELED
FEZRFBEFE &
MEEE1(e) () sz &
STHBCRRIE -

23 W il Al

RZE——F+=ZA=+—8"
AR TARAEREEAZR
H1a%E#) 5124,608,0008 (=
T ——4 : 129,013,000 T)

Annual Report 2012 —F— "4E4ER

107



Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 23. HAR KA ()

e)  Capital management e) jeg Xigil
The Group's primary objectives when managing REEEREAZBEZBENR
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to AL B A M ER BB
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue AEBELE - DUEFEBHER KT
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for MR PE 2 2 o S AR 75 T (B LA R IE 1S
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services EERAZHE  BERRREA
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing i B3 N A H Ath AR B A 75 SR A
access to finance at a reasonable cost. o
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages NEEFER K E H B AR
its capital structure to maintain a balance between TRARER  NEREKRED
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible REATAEABEIRSEER
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages KB R i & AR R 2 4 B
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and RARFE 2 MBS & - WHEEL
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of BIRE 2 B L E AR RBIEL
changes in economic conditions. o
Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors MEFEH—5 - NEBLUFE
its capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to- BEHE R R HREEERHEER
capital ratio. For this purpose, the Group defines net B o BRIt ARE 2 ERFFHEIZ
debt as total debt (which includes interest-bearing BEH(BEFEEE  Hihe
borrowings and other financial liabilities) less cash and BMEB)RERELBASEEY
cash equivalents. Capital comprises all components of FTE BABEBERAKS
equity.
During 2012, the Group's strategy, which was RZB——FRN - KEEZER
unchanged from 2011, was to maintain the net debt- BT ——FRFNE TR
to-capital ratio at below 60%. In order to maintain or B FELEE R FER60% °
adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of RUEFLFABRZILE - NEEK
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, EEEMRRRNZRE - BT
return capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing gt ~ MREEIERE AR - T
or sell assets to reduce debt. MEBRESLEEE - UKD

BT o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IFF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 23. AR B A ()
Capital management (Continued) e)  HARH(4)
The net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 December 2012 and RZE-—ZFR-ZT——F+=
2011 was as follows: A=+—HBZEBEHFEHERL
KT
The Group The Company
FEH RAF
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--f —I——% —E-—f% —Z——%
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
sk T T Tix T
Financial liabilities included SAB SR AMER
in trade and other payables BEzemEeE 20 20,724 25,213 754 653
Bank borrowings HFITHEE 21 - 181 = -
Total debt BB 20,724 25,394 754 653
Less: Cash and cash B RekBAg
equivalents =By 19 (87,028) (121,206) (4) (5)
Net (deposits)/debt (BR)/BB3E (66,304) (95,811) 750 648
Capital ER 339,413 371,654 261,096 269,131
Net debt-to-capital ratio B FEUES
BALE N/ATES NATIEA 0% 0%

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, neither the Company

nor any of its subsidiaries were subject to externally

imposed capital requirements.

RZBE——FRZF——F+=
A=+—8 ' ARFKEA(AH
B AR HAEEFINDHE N E A
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity and interest rate risks arises in
the normal course of the Group's business. The Group's
exposure to these risks and the financial management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these
risks are described below.

a)  Credit risk
The Group’s and the Company’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to trade and other receivables, amount
due from a subsidiary and cash at banks. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. The Group grants a
credit period of not more than 30 days from the date
of billing. Debtors with balances that are more than 3
months overdue are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

In respect of the amount due from a subsidiary, the
Company reviews the recoverable amount of the
amount due from the subsidiary at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amount. In
this regard, the management considers that the
Company's credit risk is significantly reduced.

In respect of cash at bank, the Group and the Company
limit their exposure to credit risk by placing deposits
with financial institutions that meet the established
credit rating. Given these high credit standing, the
management does not expect any counterparty to fail
to meet its obligations.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country in
which customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group has no significant concentration of credit risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

a)

b)

Credit risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, other than the
concentration of credit risk on the amount due from
a subsidiary, the Company does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group
and the Company as set out in note 26(a), the Group
does not provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group or the Company to credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these
financial guarantees at the end of the reporting period
is disclosed in note 26(a).

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables are set out in note 18.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands.
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group's and the Company's financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group and the Company can be required to pay:

BE = AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

24. AL BE AT BB AP (1)

b)

1 £2 L B& (%)
RIEHR - BREKRME QRN
BzEREERRN - ARAL

BEHMEERBREPNIER

BRPEE26(a) T AN E KA A F]
R R E AN - REEYL
ERPEMEMBERNBEARE
B ARG EZEERR - B
BAZEMHERRBREMRZ &
RIEERBRE M FE26(a)

BERAEERE S R E M EKER
BffEEZEERR 2E—FE
ERBEENENME 18

i ) e < b B

(=
EXGZHREEE B
HEETEPRER <
NN REHER - AEEH
AIBRUNEHERERDESH
KEEEBTHEROZIER - 1t
migEREF TR HHRET
ZoRBBAERHENES
NENEEHEERMZABES

Bk e

=

TRETAEBRARE 2T/
BERRERRZHBTROIE
B DREAORFAHNRESRE
(BREREREHNXFEZNE
MR B FBA X - AIIRR
BERRZMEGFE) ARKE
B EARRE A 2RER 2 HREH
HIEtHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE F— A=A HIFEE
(LB ICAHE)

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

24. i BE AT B R AP (41)

b)  Liquidity risk (Continued) b) B SRR (B)
Specifically, for bank loan which contains a repayment LHZ  REERTUEENE
on demand clause which can be exercised at the T REFTETERZRITE
bank’'s sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash RME @ STERBIEARER
outflow based on the earliest period in which the entity ERERCHZPHEFEZR®
can be required to pay, that is if the bank was to invoke TR - MW 8R 1T 8 5 A 544 B AP
its unconditional rights to call the loan with immediate BEERZER - EARITIER
effect. The maturity analysis for other bank borrowings BEIE ST R BET 2R KA A
is prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates. Mgl o
The Group
A&5E
2012 2011
—5--& —T——F%
Contractual Contractual
undiscounted undiscounted
cash outflow cash outflow
BRRTE BHRIFE
b poh Rem
Within 1 Carrying Within 1 Carrying
year or on amount at year or on amount at
demand 31 December demand 31 December
Wt=A ®+=A
—£R Er=FzZ —£R =t—Hz
RERER REE FIREK REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TERT TAET TET
Bank borrowings BITIER - - 181 181
Trade and other payables &5 Rt EMEE 20,724 20,724 25,213 25,213
20,724 20,724 25,394 25,394
Financial guarantees issued: 3 7 £ BIER :
Maximum amount BRRNGASE
guaranteed (note 26(a)) (Ffi5x 26(a)) - - 26 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IFF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 24. bR B A% B R A P (%)

FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

b)  Liquidity risk (Continued) b)  RENE SRR (B)
The Company
|
2012 2011
= .

Contractual Contractual

undiscounted undiscounted

cash outflow cash outflow

BRKITR BRRTR
Within 1 Carrying Within 1 Carrying
year or on amount at year or on amount at
demand 31 December demand 31 December
Rt=A W+=ZA
—F R =+—RA2 —FR =t-Az
RER REE REX FaE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER TET TAR
Trade and other payables B3 REAEFEE 754 754 653 653

Financial guarantees issued: =3 7 £ BIER :
Maximum amount BERNSASE

guaranteed (note 26(a)) (Fi7E26(a)) - - 26 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

<)

d)

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from
cash and cash equivalents and bank borrowings.
The Group does not anticipate significant impact
to cash and cash equivalents and bank borrowings
because the interest rates of bank deposits and bank
borrowings are not expected to change significantly.
The interest rates and maturity information of the
Group’s bank borrowings are disclosed in note 21.
Bank borrowings issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

In the opinion of the Company's directors, the Group's
and the Company's exposure to interest rate risk is

insignificant.

Currency risk
Currency risk arises on financial instruments that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional

currency in which they are measured.

The Group’s and the Company's exposure to currency

risk is insignificant.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

e)

Fair values

0

Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value
of financial instruments measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period across the
three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in
HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”,
with the fair value of each financial instrument
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest
level of input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

° Level 1 (highest level): fair values
measured using quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical financial
instruments.

o Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly
or indirectly based on observable market

BE A A= —HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

24. AL BE AT BB AP (1)

i) BAFEIESTHTA
TREJNEREHR 2
BB REERNETR
[E®MTA: BFE] FRA
PREEMRAFESRGE
M=EFMRP  AAFE
ATEMERMIAZREE
B BERIENERT
B2 RAFE2BDERE
AMSIEFE - BR%HA
HATEFAEHRZEEEZ -
ERERFBOT
e FIRA(ERRFR):

MBAEEET ST A
FRemIANRE

(RERE)HERF
B

o E2f: MRAEAR
ST EUERTA
HHRE  HBEER
WA ERREERE

REJBEMIGEIRN

data. HERN - FEAT
ER
o Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured o FEIM(HIEFR) :
using valuation techniques in which any FAEFREZH AW
significant input is not based on observable SEER A B RN S
market data. BRMmERMTER
FE o
2012
—E-—F
The Group The Company
K&EE ADF
Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
E- $ZH F=4K A B8 FZf  $=8 A3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tz TEx TEx TEx TEx TEx  TET TR
Assets EE
Available-for-sale AfEE
unlisted debt Kb
securities E5EH 1,370 - - 1,370 1,370 - - 1,370
Trading securities RHER 373 150 = 523 = = = -
1,743 150 - 1,893 1,370 - - 1,370
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 24. 2k b B A B R A P (1)
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)
e)  Fair values (Continued) e) AT (&)
i) Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued) ) ERTFEIEeHTA
(#%)
2011
—Z——F
The Group The Company
KER NG|

Level T Level2 Level3 Total  Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
-8 F-H F=H Ait BH FZR  F=R EH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TExr TEr TExT TEx FExT THExT TET TER

Assets 13
Available-for-sale AIEEHE
unlisted equity KM
securities RAZES - 150 - 150 - - - -
Available-for-sale AftE
unlisted debt KEm
securities EREH 6,800 - - 6,800 6,800 - - 6,800
6,800 150 - 6,950 6,800 - - 6,800
During the year, there were no significant RERN E—REE_R
transfers between instruments in Level 1 and TEMmEREE -
Level 2.
ii)  Fair values of financial instruments carried at other i) R FEKIMEED AR
than fair value TETANTFE
The carrying amounts of the Group's and the REBRARAFTHNEEHT
Company’s financial instruments carried at cost AMEEENIRRE NS
or amortised cost are not materially different SHAASIER - HEHER =
from their fair values as at 31 December 2012 T—ZFRZET——F
and 2011. +=—A=+—HHAFE
mEALA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

f)

Estimation at fair values

The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of
financial instruments.

i) Securities

Fair value for the unlisted equity investments
are estimated using the applicable fair value
measurement of the relevant assets and
liabilities of the investee. Fair value of unlisted
debt securities is based on quoted market prices
at the end of the reporting period without any
deduction for transaction costs.

ii)  Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
The fair value is estimated as the present value of
future cash flows, discounted at current market
interest rates for similar financial instruments.

25. COMMITMENTS

(a)

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of
properties held under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of one to three years,
with an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent

rentals.

At 31 December 2012, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of office properties and office equipment are

payable as follows:

BE = AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

24. 4 Rh

25. 7RI

(a)

Je i 4 B B 4 P (#)

AT R
ATHAR e T AR FE
BT 2 T E ARG -

i) Fd s
ANEMRARE 2 AFE
THRABREANZHBAEE
HEBZERRTFEER
e REMEBESHAQ
FETRHER RO TS
HwEE BETEREM
R BRAVEFIR ©

A E KR EH

RNFELRABLUEET
BEZBREMSMEFRZ
ARBREREZREMET -

AEERBERBELLEHROTA
ZWMEZAEBA - ZFBREZT
MEMBRER—E=F "EE
EMRERTA RRREN - %F
HEMERSIAES -

RZE——F+_A=+—8"
EBANRAEMERPRAEREZ
TAHHEEHNIET 2 KRR E
NREBSB|OT
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
25. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 25. 7RI (H)
(a)  (Continued) (@) (#&)
The Group as lessee REBEREEA
The Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E——F —ZT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Within 1 year —F AR 4,789 1,377
After 1 year but within 5 years —FUBEBEERFUAN 6,878 -
11,667 1,377

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Company had no

material commitments.

RZB-—ZFRZF——F+A
=+—H8 ARRREEERE -

(b) At 31 December 2012, the Group contracted with b) RZE—=—F+=-A=+—H"
tenants for the following total future minimum lease AREBEBF ZEFTAONBIERE
receivables: I EASBENOT ¢

The Group as lessor

AEBEBERBEA

The Group
rEE

2012
—E—_—F
HK$'000
FHBT

2011
—F—%F
HK$'000
FHET

Within 1 year —F LR

After 1 year but within 5 years —FEUBEBEERFUARN
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

26. CONTINGENT LIABILITY

a)

b)

Financial guarantees issued

At 31 December 2012, the Company had given a
corporate guarantee to a bank for issuing a letter of
indemnity to a third party in respect of a contract
undertaken by a wholly-owned subsidiary to the extent
of approximately HK$ Nil (2011: HK$134,000). The
extent of such facility utilised by the third party at the
end of the reporting period amounted to approximately
HK$ Nil (2011: HK$26,000).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income
in respect of the above guarantee issued because the
fair value of this guarantee was insignificant. As at
the end of the reporting period, the directors of the
Company do not consider it probable that a claim will

be made against the Company under the guarantee.

Contingent liability in respect of claims

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, a subsidiary of the
Company was involved in the disputes in connection
with the sales of certain completed properties. The
directors of the Company are of the view that such
disputes are based on unreasonable and invalid
grounds and are unfounded. In the circumstances, the
directors of the Company believe that the disputes
will not have a material adverse impact on the financial
position of the Group. Accordingly, no specific

provision has been made in respect of these disputes.

Except for the aforesaid, the Group and the Company do not

have any material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2012 and 2011.

BE = AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

26. BARAfE

a)

b)

B £ STt & Hb

CE iz i
RZE——F+ZA=+—8"
RAREH—E2EN BT
BEEZENRE=FELRE
MBITIEH A RERHZT BT
(ZZ——4 :134,000/87T) °
RBERAR  FZHEHAZRS
BEPHTET(ZE——F:
26,0008 7T) °

ARBIRH BB BITHERER
EEZWA - e TI R HE R
ZRFEILTER  RBREH
R RRAREER/UZERM
BARRABREBEEZHETK

AR 2 R fa it
RIE——FRZT——F+=
A=+—8 ARa—HWBA
RESEBRHEEETTIWEZ
FHOARAEERE  %FE
DERTEEBERENRYE  BH
WEREERE - ERBERT @ K
NRAEZMEE ZEFHABTEY
REE 2 HHRRELESKTF
T8 FHt - MERZEEHRIE
HRFE R

REERAKRRA

RZB-—ZFR_ZT——F+=A8
=+ —HBMEEFREASAEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

BE F— A=A HIFEE

a)

b)

Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company's
directors as disclosed in note 7 and certain of the highest
paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

27. HHERBBALRY

a) BEEHMAHME
AEETEZERASHE (B
MU 7R E 2 XN ARRE
ERERNMESMKEZET

S A TS T
2012 2011
—=2—_F =%
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Short-term employee benefits REEBRET 14,957 7,018
Post-employment benefits BEERAE A 69 26
15,026 7,044
Financing arrangements b) EAERH

Amounts

owed from/(to)
related parties

Related interest
(expense)/income

As at Year ended
31 December 31 December
Pl R EBEALE MRS (), BA
W+=—A=+—H BHEt-A=1+—HLEE
2012 2011 2012 2011
g -5 —®¥-E -3 —f
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT THART FAT
Due from a FEW—FEIBBEE A B F0A
related company 673 1A - -

This represents the amount advanced to Hong Fok
Land Investment Limited, a subsidiary of Hong Fok
Land International Limited (“HFL"), a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

The outstanding balance with this related company is
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed repayment
terms. The amount due from the related company is
included in “Trade and other receivable” (note 18).
At 31 December 2012 and 2011, no provision for
bad or doubtful debts have been made in respect of
this amount due. The maximum amount outstanding
during the year is approximately equal to HK$727,000
(2011: HK$85,000).

120 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7

ZHERHBEERMERESR
RAG(ARAZEERR
Hong Fok Land International
Limited (THFL]) KB &)
.

ZBERR I REERERTE
BHR TN ERERTEENR
By o pEUNBEE AR 2 RIBTYET
ATESREMBYERIE] (M
F18) e R ZE——F R _-F
——F®+_-_A=1+—8 " #E
PZZIHFIAED RBRE
He AFEREEZHREANEHE
BHEERY727,0008T(—F
——1%F : 85,000/87C) °



Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2012

27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

c) Other related party transactions

i)

ii)

iii)

During the year ended 31 December 2012,
the Group received management fee of
approximately HK$2,367,000 (2011: HK$Nil)
from a subsidiary of HFL, for share of
administrative expenses. The management fee
is determined quarterly between the respective
parties after negotiations having regard to the
cost of services provided. In the opinion of
the Company's directors, this transaction was
conducted in the ordinary course of the Group's
business on terms mutually agreed by both
parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2012,
the Group paid building management fee of
approximately HK$291,000 (2011: HK$421,000)
to a subsidiary of HFL for the completed
properties held for sale owned by the Group.
In the opinion of the Company’s directors,
this transaction was conducted on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary course of
the Group's business.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the
Group paid management fee of approximately
HK$5,896,000 to a subsidiary of HFL for share of
administrative expenses. The management fee
is determined quarterly between the respective
parties after negotiations having regard to the
cost of services provided. In the opinion of
the Company's directors, this transaction was
conducted in the ordinary course of the Group's
business on terms mutually agreed by both
parties.

BE = AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

27. HERIEA LA 5 (4)

o) JBRIEALZS

i)

ii)

iii)
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REE-T—=—F+=A4
=+t—BILEFE ~&£H
Eoh{TBRA M B HFL
—ENBARKIMERE
#92,367,000% L( = &
——F L) c EEEBE
TTHBEBALEEATRME
ZRBERAEEERRTE
B ARREEFRAE
ZRGDIRAEEBBEE
BBRBPRYEFITL 2K
LT o

HE-_Z——-—+=A
=+t—HIEFE ~&H
MAEEREE 2 FHIEHE
LY EMHFL— K
BAAIZNEFEREELY
291,000% T ( =& — —
1 421,000870) © AR
REFERR ZRXHEK
FRERERREREEA
BEBBIZRET -

RBE-_T——%1+-A
=t+—HLFE A58
EETHRMAZmRIHFL
—ENBARSNERE
#75,896,000/87C - EILE
TYHBBALEEIRE
ZRBRAERRIEEE
BE - ARAEERAE

ZRBGTRAEER T
BBRPREFIIL 2K
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

28. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 28. ABRE_-F -4 1+2H
NEW STANDARDS AND = H kAR OB fE NG AR
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT AR BT ~ Piwl SR RGRR
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED Z W g5
31 DECEMBER 2012

BEHEUHRR2TEAY  BE
G AERMBEANARBE_F
—CHEFTA=T-RIEFEEMZ
B3] MR (B RBIER] AT EAIRR
HEMEMRPERD) - RGERAREE
TR 2 ERT BRI -

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2012 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may
be relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUT BBz &R

ZEFTHEEN

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements 1 July 2012
— Presentation of items of other comprehensive income

HEBGENE R - [HFHE 25— 23/ BEMEENAEE | 81EF] —E——#+HF—H

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

BB REERIE 105 - [Fe I FiHRE)

1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H

HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements
BAMBHRELERE 1557 - [ ZEALH

1 January 2013
—E-—=F—H—H

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities
BRMBHREERNFE 25 [ HERAEMEEHEG#E

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

EREMGREERIE 135 - [ A FEHE

HKAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011)
BB ERIE 275 - [ BUHBEHREL(—F——F)

HKAS 28, Investments in associates and joint ventures
BAGFERE 28  [REELAIRE ERAILE ]

Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits
EREGFHERNE 195 (KIER]) - [ES#EF]
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1 January 2013
—E—=F—H—H

1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
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1 January 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 # % & — 44— H =+—H IFF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

28. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 28. RBRE_-F -4 1+2H
NEW STANDARDS AND = H kAR JE OB fE Vg AR
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT AR BT ~ Piwl SR RGRR
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED Z VB 5 (B1)

31 DECEMBER 2012 (CONTINUED)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

REULT B#is 2 &R

2 et AR AR
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle 1 January 2013
BB IR R FENE (—FEFENF2 - F——FER) —E—=%—H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures 1 January 2013

— Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

BEBUBBRESERNSE TS [2HTA  RE-LAHc@EEReMAE/NET —T—=%—-HF—H

Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation 1 January 2014
— Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

HEBGIERNERWR (2@ LA 25— A EERTHEE] WEF] —Z—F—H—H
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2015
BBV BEWELERNEIW - [2@ T A/ —E-hF—H—H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of AEBREFEV RN ZFIERT R
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in HASEUETRZZE - ZEHNA
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that b REBRBER LB AT
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact Y AREE R RIMEARR
on the Group's results of operations and financial position. EEERTE -
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Group Properties 45 )¢

Particulars of the Group's major properties held for sale as at 31 REER-ZE——F+-A=1+—HFFED
December 2012 are as follows: EZEEMEFBLOT

Percentage

Gross floor area interest attributable

HIREMEE to the Group
Location Existing Use sq. m. EEE LR
2 RIE AR FHK Batt
30 units of THE ICON, 38 Conduit Road, Residential 1,953 100%
Mid-levels, Hong Kong
BEAFILTEBEISH F=

THE ICONHY301E B iz
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